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i. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

o) n s d

DG

NMK

DAHR

CBK

ICPAK

IPSAS

NT

OCOB

OAG

OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

SAGAs

SC

FY

Director General

National Museums of Kenya

Director Administlation and Human Resource

Central Bank of Kenya

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

National Treasury

Office ofthe Controller of Budget

Office of the Auditor General

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Semi-Autonomous Govemment Agencies

State Corporations

Financial Year

lll
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b) Glossorv of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Members of Management directly entrusted with the responsrbrlity of financral
resources of the organrsatron

Comperative Ycar- Means the prror penod.
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(o)

Key Entity Information and Management

Bockqround informolion
The National Museums of Kenya (N M K) is a State Corporation cstablished by an Act of Parliament,

National Museums and Heritage Act (CAP 216) domiciled and incorporated in Kenya. The

establishment, functions and powers of the body corporatc as stipulated in the Act. The entity is

domiciled in Kenya and has station in Coastal, Central and Western regions. The stations generate

internal revenue from gate entry fees, hire of facilities which is utilised for opcrations and

management.

(b) Principol Aclivilies
principal activities of National Museums of Kenya are:

Identification and documentation of national and world heritage sites, national heritage

monuments including collections therein, taxonomy of plants and animals of national

importance, hotspots- ecosystems, historical and ethnographical materials of national

importance, archaeological and paleontological objects, cthno-biology (indigenous and

traditional knowledgc) of national importance and intangible heritage of national importance.

Repository ofreference collections ofplants and animals ofnational, regional and intemational

importance including DNA reference library, living collections of plants and animals,

collections within national monuments, historical and ethnographical reference collections and

those of national importance, archaeological and paleontological things, ethno-biology

(indigcnous and traditional knowledge)-lntangible Heritage ofnational importance.

Protect and conserve heritage sites of national and world importance, national monuments

including collections therein, historical and ethnographical collections ofnational importance,

archaeological and paleontological things, indigcnous and traditional knowledge, plants and

animals of national importance.

Transmit knowledge on taxonomy of plants and animals of national importance, hotspots-

ecosystems, heritage site national and world heritage, national monuments including

collections therein, historical and ethnographical collections of national importance,

archaeological and paleontological things, ethno-biology (indigenous and traditional

knowledge) of national impoftance through publications, public programmes and national

exhibitions.

The

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

lt
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v. Research on taxonomy of plants and animals of national importance, hotspots- ecosystems,

heritage sites national and world heritage, national monuments including collections therein,

historical and ethnographical of national importance, archaeological and paleontological

things, ethno-biology (indigenous and traditional knowledge) of national importance,

behavioural sciences, Swahrli language and connection to ancient and historical.

vi. Intemational obligations: scientific authority and focal point for biological conventions (e.9.

CITES, RAMSAR, Convention on Migratory species, CBD-specific thematic areas, IPBES).

Management Authority - e.g. UNESCO World Heritage Convention, 1972 and heritage

management development services.

Our Mission
To promote conservation and sustainable utilization of national heritage through generation,

documentation and dissemination ofresearch and collection management knowledge, information and

innovations.

Our Vision
To be a global leader in heritage research and management.

Our Mandate
NMK derives its mandate from Museums and Heritage Act 2006, which spells out its objectives and

functions as follows:

. Serve as the national repositories for things of scientific, cultural, technological and human

interest;

. Serve as the place where research and dissemination of knowledge in all fields ofscientific,

cultural, technological and human interest is undertaken;

. Identify, protect, conserve and transmit the cultural and natural heritage ofKenya; and

. Promote cultural resources in the context ofsocial and economic development.
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(c) Kev Monooement
The Entity'.s day{o-day management is under the following key organs:

Pd$ihdtlohi l NAnte :

Chairman Board of Directors Mr. Edwin Jacob Abonyo

2 Board Member
Mr. Anthony Peter

Wainaina Kamau

3 Board Member Dr. Eric Thomas Ogwora

4 Board Member Mr. John Nderitu Mwangi,

5 Board Member Mr. Omar Osogo,

6 Board Member
Mr. Mudathir Ahmed

Abdulkarim

7 Board Member Mr. Abdi Aden Korio

8 Accounting officer/ DG
Prof. Mary Wanjiku

Gikungu

9 Director Administration and Iluman Resource Mr. Stanvas Opijah Ongalo

l0 Director National Repository and Research Dr. Esther Kioko

lt Director Antiquities, Sites and Monuments Dr. Fredrick Kyalo Manthi

12. Director Institute of Primate Research Dr. Peter Gichuhi Mwethera

who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. .,H iE l t:q?4:: Tdnid.I fudl'.r
I DG Prof. Mary Wanjiku Gikungu

2
Corporation Secretary and Head of

Legal Services
Ms. Metrine Wakhungu

3 Financial Controller Mr. Geoffrey Namachanja

4 Chief Procurement Officer Mr. Mwania Mutinda

(d) Fiduciorv Monooement
ih" k"y manage.ent personnel who held office during the financial year ended 3gth June 2023 and

vll
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Key Entity lnformation and Management (continued)

(e) Fiduciorv Oversiqht Arronoemenls
Board Committees

The Board has three standing committees, which rneet regularly under the terms ofreference set by

the Board. In addition, there are two ad hoc comnrittees; one for conducting interviews of senior

staff and the other is on Rules and Regulations of the Heritage Act.

i. Audit Committee

This committee reviews the integrity of financial statements and financial performance, compliance

with accounting standards and mainlaining of ovelsight on internal control systems. The Dilector

General, Director Administration and Human Resources and Financial Controller may attend

mcetings olthe conrmittee on invitation.

ii. Finance and Establishment committee

This committee is responsible for Monitoring and appraising the performance of senior

management, review of all hurnan resources policies, finances, budget and institutional (physical

and infraslructural development).

iii. ResearchCommittee

This committee deliberates on all matters pertaining to Research policy and Management.

iv. Ad hoc Committees

There is an Ad hoc committee, which is the interview pane[. This commiftee deals with interviews

for recruitment of the senior staff.

There is an Ad hoc committee on the National Art Gallery of Kenya project,

(f) Entitv Heodquorters
National Museums of Kenya Headquarters

Museums Hill Road

P.O. Box 40658-00100

Nairobi, KENYA

(g) Entiiv Conlocts
Telephone: (254) 37 42 I 6 I I 4

E-mail : info@museums.or.ke

Website: www.museums.or.ke

vlll
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(h) Eniitv Bonke rs

Kenya Commercial Bank

Sarit Centre, Westlands Branch

P.O. Box 14959

Nairobi, Kenya

2. Standard Chartered Bank ofKenya

Westlands Branch

P.O. Box 14438

Nairobi, Kenya.

3. Other Banks

Co- Operative Bank

University Way Branch

P.O. Box. 4823 I -001 00

Nairobi, Kenya

(i) lndeoendentAuditor
Auditor-General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

[] Princiool Leool Adviser
The Attorney General

State Law OfIice and Department ofJustice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 401 12

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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l. The Boord of Dlrectors

I

s,k F:r.,,*

1.ffi

Chairman Board of Directors

Mr. Edwin Jacob Abonyo, Chainnan ofNational

Museums of Kenya Board of Directors, bom on

l"r November, 1959.

He also served as a member in the State

Cooperation Advisory Committee (SCAC),

Managing Director Sender Services Company

Limited, Fort Fann Linrited, Senior Manager at

Sasini Tea Company- Sotik, Ceneral Manager at

Unitea Ltd, Unieximp Ltd, General Warehouse

Mombasa and Field Manager - Alternating Africa

Highlands Produce Company Ltd, Kericho.

He also has community responsibility as Board of

Covemance for Archbishop Okoth Ochoria High

School and St. Augustine's R.C Secondary

School in Koru and Kandege, Fort Teman

respectively.
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2 Board Me mber

Mr. Anthony Peter Wainaina Kamau, bom on

7th November 1964, holds a Bachelor ofScience

in Agricultural Economics and Masters in

Business Administration. He is Managing

Partner at Fanisi Capital. Former CEO of

Centum Investment Company and Trans-

Century.

He also served as Resident Vice President,

Corporate Finance at Citibank NA, and as a

management consultant at Price Waterhouse.

He has chaired several boards, founder of

Origins Investment Group Advisors and author

ofthe first ever-authoritative book on investment

groups in Kenya.

3 Board Member

Dr. Eric Thomas Ogwora PhD, bom on lTth May,

1976. He holds PhD (Philosophy of Education),

Catholic University of Eastem Africa (CUEA)-

2012; MA (Epistemology) Catholic University of

Eastem Africa (CUEA)-2006; BA (Philosophy

and Religious Studies) Urbamian University-

2003.

He a senior lecturer in philosophy and political

thought at the Faculty of Arts and Social Sciences

in Kisii University. He was the founding Dean of

the School of Arts and Social Sciences in Kisii

University between 2013 -2017. He is an

xll
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academic scholar with I6 years of teaching and

research experience in universities and higher

leaming institutions across World. An author of

two (2) books in the area of Epistemology, and

one (l) in Philosophy of Education. He is well

published in peer refereed joumal in
rnultidisciplinary areas such as epistemology,

ethics, Philosophy of Education, Political

Thought, Covernance and Democracy. Has taught

and supervised more than 30 srudents in PhD and

Masters till completion. He has deep knowledge

and skills in matters dealing with culture,

leadership and political development. He is also

highly skilled in board matters especially in

strategic planning, procurement and finance risk

management, handling of human resource matters

and in monitoring and evaluation. In addition, he

has training and certification as a professional

mediator.

4 Board Member

Mr. John Nderitu Mwangi, born on 20th October

1965. PhD in Economics ongoing at the

University of Nairobi. Holds an MSc in

Enlrepreneurship from JKUAT, Post Graduate

Diploma in E.C. Competition Policy & taw,

Kings College-University of London and BA

(Economics and Business Studies from Kenyatta

University.

He has attended various management courses

including Strategic [eadership at the Kenya

xlll
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School of Covemment, Corporatc Covemance

and Risk Management.

He is a Principal Economist in the Dircctoratc of

Budget, Fiscal and Economic Affairs ofthe

National Treasury. He is also the Secretary to the

Competition Tribunal ofKenya. He has served

in several national and regional conrmittees in

Econorrics Policy & Competition Policy.

5 Board Member

Mr. Omar Osogo, bom on 23 August 1968. He

holds an Executive MBA and Advanced Dealer

Management Certificate.

He is currently the General Manager, Hino

Division July 2019 at CFAO Motors Kenya

Limited.

He has attended various courses including: The

Overseas Human Resources and [ndustry

Development Association [HIDA] Training

(March 2014 Japan); Tencho - General Manager

Training (September 201I UK); Advance Dealer

Management Program (South Africa/ USA

August 2010 to July 201 l) : Cornell University -
Studies in Executive kadership - includes

Strategic Thinking, Scenario Planning,

Executive Decision Making and t*ading

Through Creativity (Professional online courses

MBA Le vel); Chartered Institute of Marketing-

Customer Communication- 2000; Solution

xlv
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selling - Short Course World Space South Africa

- 1999; Computer'/ IT Skills- ICDL Cerrificate.

6

t

Board Member- Alternate to Principal
Secretary State Department of Culture and
Heritage, Ministry Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage
Mr. Mudathir Ahmed Abdulkarim was bom on

3Orh April 1977. His area of specialization is
Marketing. He holds a Masters of Business
Administration.

7

I

Board Member

Mr. Abdi Aden Korio was born in 1973 holds a

Masters' degree in Epidemiology from Kenya

Methodist University, a Bachelor of Science in

Environmental Health from Mt. Kenya

University.

He is a seasoned and accomplished

Environmental, Public Health, Nurse and

Security Operations Professional with over 13

years ofquality work experience

acquircd in diverse challenging roles with the

Kenya Army.

Currently the Managing Director of Sangole

Conslruct ion Cornpany Limited.
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ProL Mary Cikungu holds a PhD in Natural

Science and Mathemalics (University of Bonn,

Cermany), M.Sc. in Conservation Biology

(Univcrsity of Nairobi) and B.Sc. in Botany and

Zoology (University of Nairobi). She has

published over 40 papers in peer-reviewed

joumals. Currently, Director, National Repository

and Research. She is a renowned Bee Specialist

and a Conservation Biologist with wide

experience in ecosystem services, climate change,

cnvironmental health and food security.

She is a trad Author (LA) in Intergovemmental

Platform on Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services

(IPBES), member of Platform for Agricultural

Research (PAR) -under FAO and a Mentor in

African Women in Agricultural Research and

Development (AWARD). In addition, she has

been a Council Member of Kibabii University.

The Director General chairs and supervises the

Directors Executive Team (D.E.T)

xvt
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9 Ms. Metrine Wakhungu is a certified secretary

and a member of the Institute of Certified Public

Secretaries of Kenya (ICPSK), an advocate of the

High Court of Kenya and member of the l"aw

Society of Kenya admitted to the Kenyan bar in

2004. She holds a Master of [-aws Degree

(LL.M), (specialty in l.aw Governance and

Democracy) and Bachelor of laws Degree

(LL. B.), both from the University of Nairobi.

She also holds a postgraduate diploma in law

from the Kenya School of [aw, a Diploma in

Human Resources Management from the Kenya

Institute of Management. She is the legal advisor

to the NMK Board of Directors and management

and responsible for Board secretariat services.

She advises on legal and statutory compliance

requirements as well as on good corporate

govemance practices.
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2. Key Monogemenl Teom

No. Management Details

iIt

i
t ,

\, 1.

Prof. Mary Gikungu holds a PhD in Natural Science and

Mathcmatics (University of Bonn, Germany), M.Sc. in

Conservation Biology (University of Nairobi) and B.Sc. in

Botany and Zoology ( Univcrsity of Nairobi).

The Director General chairs and supervises the Directors

Executive Team (D.E.T) and A.l.E holder.

7 Mr. Stanvas Oprja Ongalo holds a Masters' degree in

Business Administration from Moi university, Bachelor

degrce in Govemment Adrninistration, a Higher National

Diploma in Human Resource Management and a Senior

Management Certificate in Human Resource and

Management.

The Director Administration and Human Resource

responsible lor human capital, planning, recruitment,

development, performance management, reward and

wellness. Also responsible for harmonious ernployee

relations, management of all organizations' logistics, fleet

and facilities.
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3

&

Dr. Fredrick Kyalo Manthi (EBS) obtained his PhD from

the University ofCape Town, South Africa, in 2006. He is

currently the Director, Antiquitics Sites and Monuments

thus oversees operations in all sites, monuments and

museums across the country.

4

It
,-l

Dr. Peter Gichuhi Mwethera, PhD, MBS holds a PhD

(Bristol, UK); MPhil (Bristol, UK); Post Doc (North

Carolina, USA); IVF (L.euven, Belgium); BSc (Hons,

Kenya)

Director at the lnstitutc of Primate Research offcring

overall directions for the institution.

5 Dr. Esther Kioko holds a PhD in Agricultural Entomology

(Kenyatta University), MSc in Agricultural Entomology

(Kenyatta University), MSc in Environmental

Management (South Eastem Kenya University), Bachelor

ofEducation in Botany and Zoology (Kenyatta University)

and a Postgraduate Diploma in Applied Insect Taxonomy

(University of Wales).

Cunently, she is the acting Director National Repository

and Research.
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Ms. Mctrinc Wakhungu is a certified secretary and a

membcr of the Institute of Certified Public Secretaries of

Kenya(ICPSK),an advocate of the High Court of Kcnya

and mcmber ol the law Society of Kcnya admitted to the

Kenyan bar in 2004. She holds a Master of [-aws Dcgree

(LL.M), (specialty in Law Govemance and Democracy)

and Bachelor of [-aws Dcgree (LL.B.), both from the

University of Nailobi.

She also holds a postgraduate diploma in Law from the

Kenya School of [.aw, a Diploma in l{uman Resources

Management from the Kenya Institute of Management.

She rs the legal advisor to the NMK Board of Directors and

management and responsible for Board secretariat services.

6

,

-{ T

7 Mr. Geoffrey Nanachanja is a graduate of Business

Management (Finance Option) and holds a Bachelor of

Business Management (Accounting option) from Moi

University, Certified Public Accountaut of Kenya and a

mernber of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of

Kenya. Certified Trainer of Trainers by Centre for

Parliamentary Studies and Training (CPST).

He is the Financial Controller

xx
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3. Choirmon'sSlotemenl
I am extremely honoured to have been appointcd to serve as lhe Chairman ofthe National Museums of
Kenya (NMK) during the pcriod under review 202212023. I would like to thank the entire NMK Board
and Management tcam for the support given during this Financial Ycar.

NMK receives grants from the Govemment of Kenya for both recunent and development budgets
through the Parent Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage. The recurrent and developrnent grants

cater for personnel emoluments and capital projects respectively. The National Museums of Kenya
generates internal revenue which caters for operations and maintenance. The grants and internally
generated revenue are reflected in the NMK financial statements for period ending 202212023 financial
year.

ln the fiscal rcporting period 20221 2023, NMK received Kshs.l, 308.2lmillion in recurrent and Kshs.

18,523,600 in Development grants respectively. NMK also secured funding frorn the Sports, Arts and
Social Development Fund to a tune of IGhs.38,790,233 that funded the construction and rehabilitation
of heritage sitcs and monumcnts.

In this regard NMK appreciates the continued financial support frorn the Govemment of Kenya (GOK)
and the Development Partners.

It is worth noting that during the period under review, NMK managed to deliver on tlre following seven
(7) major areas olopemtions:

l.
ii.
iii.
iv.

vi.
vii.

Natural Products Industry initiative - Vision 2030 flagship project
Documentation and dissemination of knowledge
Kipepeo Programme
Directorate of National Repository and Research
Directorate of Antiquities, Sites and Monuments
Institute of Primate Research
Marketing

NMK fully recognizes thc responsibility bcstowed on them of safeguarding thc Country's cultural and

Natural heritage is becoming increasingly challenging and complex due to threats of sea waves and

effects of climate change on historical sites and monunrcnts. Encroachment and land use changes,

urbanization and development as well as low funding al'e some ofthe threats that impact heavily on the

gazetted sites and monuments countrywidc. The Board of Directors and Management of the National

Museums of Kenya prioritized the preservation of Fort Jesus historical site that is a major tourist

attraction in the Coast Region, which was undel threat from erosion by the sea waves.

In addition, NMK has experienced a myriad of othel challenges including; budgetary cuts leading to

financial constraints, heritage collcction gaps, inadequate funds for conservation ofhcritage sites, poorly

equipped laboratory facilities, storage space is limited therefore therc is need to put up an ultra- modem
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Collection Centre for thc hcritage collections. NMK, as a priority also needs to digitize and standardize

the Heritage collections in order to leverage on digital economy.

The process of transferring the devolved museum function has not been fully completed, despite

budgetary resources having been transferred fronr the National level to County level. It's in this regard

that NMK is working tirelessly to ensure that the institution aligns with the Constitution 2010. The

Heritage and Museums Bill 2023 is undergoing review tlrrough public participation as was developed to

repeal the National Museums and Heritage Act 2006 and enact a new Bill that conforms to the

Constitution 2010. The Bill proposes to rctain the National Muscurns ofKenya, already established undcr

the National Museums and Heritage Act 2006.

Going forward, NMK will endeavour to achieve her mission and the national goal through the Strategic

Plan (2023-2021\ aimed at achieving the serout objectives as outlined in the Govemment blue -print of

Bottom-up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA) and Vision 2030.

I wish to congratulate the Director Ceneral and her entire team ofManagement for putting NMK back on track.

My Board will continue to support the management in heritage conservation and managemenl together with the

priceless collections of Kenya's living cultural and natural heritage.

I wish to express gratitude to my fellow board members for their contribution, dedication and supporl as we

together propel this great institution to higher heights.

I look forward to the coming year and we have a great deal to do.

$
Mr. Edwin Jacob Abonyo
Chairman Board of Directors
Date: March 19,2024
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4. Report of the Chief Execulive Officer
National Museums of Kenya (NMK) is a rnultidisciplinary state corporation entrusted with the

management of cultural & natural heritage in Kenya. The state corporation manages 28 museums and

over 400 gazetted sites and lnonuments across the Country.

The post covid-l9 pandernic has been a period for reflection lor the Management on how to manage the

organizations operations amid financial cash inflow challenges. NMK has internally generated funds

which still cannot finance the deficit gap. The fortunes have recently been put to great test. The slump in

tourism due to the political situation that have prompted frequent travel advisories by Western

Covemments, have led to decline in revenue collection. In addition, the Covid-19 pandemic has had a

serious impact on our revenue from March 2020 to date. As at 30th June 2023, NMK intemal generated

revenue stood at Kshs.295,953,197 against annual budgeted revenue of Kshs.300, 000, 000.

NMK holds our Collective National Memory spanning over hundreds ofyears. However, in the past few

years, NMK has received budget cuts from -fhe National Treasury which have caused a financial dent in

its operations that requires an immediate intervention from the government. NMK received budget cuts

through the Presidential Directive whereby personnel and emoluments realized a deficit of Kshs

53,220,000. Others that were alfected by this directive include grants for the support of Natural Product

Industry initiative and Institute of Primate Research (IPR) where it was reduced by Kshs.16,200,000 and

Kshs. 6,680,000 respcctively.

While the institution experienced a downtown in visitor numbers and the revenues collccted during the

Covid -19 period to date, efforts invested at the time have seen the institution begin to recover and even

outperform some ofthe challenges the institution has faced over time.

I am delighted to note that NMK staffhave worked tirelessly in seeking external funding to operationalize

projects to enhance NMK capabilities. Through focused fundraising efforts, NMK secured funding from

the Sports, Arts and Social Development Fund to a tune of Kshs.38,?90,233 and Kshs. 18,523,600 from

Government of Kenya (GOK) as shown below:

The Kshs. 16,733,276.50 to cater for backfilling & tand scapingof Fort Jesus Sea Wall.

The Kshs. 12,085,410.70 Construction and Rehabilitation Njuri Ncheke Shrine, Meru Countylt.
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iii. The Kshs. 5,585,434.80 to cater for ablution block, paving works and landscaping works at Vasco

Da Gama, Malindi, Kilifi County.

iv. The Kshs.4,386,110.80 to cater for redecoration and refurbishment to the National Museums of
Kenya bui ldings externally.

v. The Kshs. 18,523,600 for lnstitute of Primare Research (lPR) infrastructure upgrade.

Despite the financial constraints, duling the period undcr review, N M K managed to achieve the following:

vi. Natural products Industry initiative - Vision 2030 flagship project

o Sensitization and needs assessment exercise were canied out in l3 counties where 614

stakeholders werc reached on Indigenous Knowledge (lK) documentation and

digitization project.

. Capacity Building of 423 stakeholders on documentation and digitization of IK and

associated assets was donc in Murang'a, Narok, Kisii, Makueni and Tharaka-Nithi

counties where documentation and digitization was done and 5 County digital registers

& I National reposirory set up.

. l3 sensitization sessions were carried out on the Protection ofTraditional Knowledge

and Cultural Expressions Act 2016 (TK&CE Act 2016).

o The TK & CE Act 2016 and accompanying regulations was translated to Kiswahili,

printed and disseminated for public awareness.

. A feasibiliV study on the viability of Indigenous Wild Fruits (lWF) as a commercial

venture was done and a report prepared.

o 12,600 African Indigenous Vegetables (AIVs) producers were recruited, trained and

supplied with high quality certified AIV seeds in seven counties.

. A survey to determine the impact of AIV commercialization in Kilifi, Machakos,

Kiarnbu, Kakarnega, Siaya and Nandi counties was uudertaken.

o 5 Prior Informed Consent (PIC) agreements between Indigenous Knowledge (lK)

holders and users to access IK were signed.

. Analysis of chenrical composition of herbal formulations in Abrus Precatorius i.e

identification of active components lor testing in the animal models was done and a

report on the chemical profiles prepared.

Documentation and dissemination of knowledgevlll.
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. 67,609 heritage collections were standardized and digitized for user needs.

o 103 scientific research papers, book chapters and technical reports were published.

o 226 conferences/ scientific expo/ workshops/ scminars and or exhibitions were held.

. 84,372 collections were curated, updated and maintained.

o 145 field expeditions on natural and cultural heritage were carried out.

o 16,754 new materials/ Objects/ specimens were acquired.

Kipepeo Programme

o Two intemational markets in Netherlands for export were identified.

. 1000 pollinator friendly crop seedlings were planted.

. 500k9 of quality honey was produced and sold and Kenya Bureau of Standards

(KEBS) certificate is in place to ensure quality.

o Fruit trees plant nurseries and gardens were set up in 5 schools.

Directorate of National Repository and Research

o Mushroom was promoted as an underutilized food for commercialization.

. Beekeeping was promoted by undertaking training and value addition ofhive products

in four counties.

. Edible insects' farming was promoted in two counties through training.

Directorate of Antiquities Sites and Monuments

o Two sites, Jamia Mosque Railway Ladlries and Kenya National Theatre were submitted

for gazettement.

. Iamu museum was fully rehabilitated.

o 103 interactive public programmes,24 temporary exhibitions and 6 cultural festivals

in collaboration with counlies were held.

. 30 artisans were trained on indigenous wood carving techniques and Kiswahili

language.

o Draft nomination dossier for Cede Historic Town was submitted to the UNESCO

Secretariat for completeness check in October 2022.

o Outdoor signage was designed and printed sponsored by EASCO Africa Limited and

Safari link respectively.
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lnstitute of Primate Research

. 22 candidate drugs and vaccines as potential health interventions were tested.

. 33 people wcre trained on lnfectious Diseases and Reproductive health.

o 120 snakebite rescue missions were undertaken and 340 victims successfully rescued

from snakebites

Marketing

. Stakeholder mapping was carried out at Gede, Fort Jesus, Mnarani, Jumba la Mtwana

and Karen Blixen.

. Workshop was held at NMK incorporating different departments enhancing visitor

experiences within our museums as well as expanding diversity and audience reach by

use of a self-guiding rrobile application, leaning managetnent system and production

of AR/VR experiences.

. Mapping of the four assets to be digitized, that is at, Gede, Fort Jesus, Mnarani, Jumba

la Mtwana aud Karen Blixen was undertaken

. A mobile app, trarning Manigement System and Augmented Reality/ virtual Reality

for five (5) sites and monuments were developed and operationalized. These are

Nairobi National Museum, Nairobi Gallery, Karen Blixen Museum, Fort Jesus

Museum and Kisurnu Museum.

In addition, in order to remain relevant and to continue to be an active player in government business,

NMK is actively streamlining processes to ensure growth in revenue, visitor numbers as well as engage

in research that is entrepreneurial. Going forward, NMK has developed the Strategic Plan (2023 -2027)

and aligned it to the Covemments blue -print Bottom-up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA),

Vision 2030 and Mediurn-Term Plan IV (MTP IV).

The commitment of the NMK board, Management and Staff towards NMK achieving its mandate is highly

appreciated.

$@$rwfu
Prof. Mary Gikungu
Director General
Date: March 19,2024
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5. Stolement of Performonce ogoinsl Predetermined Objeclives tor F\ 202212023
National Museums ofKenya had three (3) key strategic pillars and fourteen (14) strategic objectives

within its Revised 2020-2023 Strategic Plan.

The strategic objectives include:

l. To improve institutional capacity through training of 175 staff for effective management of

biomedical, natural, and cultural heritage.

2. To strengthen management framework by developing and reviewing 10 policies.

3. To achieve l00o/o compliance and corpomte govemance through effective perfonnance

management.

4. To enhance infrastructural developments by 50%o.

5. To provide proof-of-concept through biomedical research for six products towards improvemcnt

of national health.

6. To undertake research on four natural and cultural heritage resources for enhanced nutrition and

food security.

7. To enhance conservation and preservation ofnatural cultural heritage through innovative research.

8. To enhance knowledge sharing on research and development through al least three platforms.

9. To create new partnerships including multilateral, bilateral, collaborative research agreements,

and community-based agreements.

10. To enhance the visibility of NMK's products and services.

I l. To identi$ and develop route to market for 5 entrepreneurial opportunities.

12. To enhance 5 strategic partnerships with key stakeholders in heritage management value chain.

13. To grow income from multiple and diverse sources by 0.5V6.

14. Establish an Anti- Doping t aboratory at IPR to test all sportsmen and women for doping.

The strategic pillars are as follows:

i. Pillar l: Enhancing an innovative research and development environment

ii. Piltar 2: Enhancing rnstitutional capacity for effective and sustainable heritage management.

iii. Pillar 3: Promoting entrepreneurial oppornrnities arising from Rcsearch and Development for

sustainable heritage management.
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NMK develops its annual work plans bascd on the above pillars. Assessment ofthe Board's

perforntance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. NMK achieved its performance

targets set for the FY 202212023 period lor its 3 strategic pillars as indicatcd in the table bclow:

NMK's Strategic Pillars and Objectives

Undertake conservation
education outreach on
prirnates and biodiversity to at
lcast 200 local pcople

Strateglc Pillar Objectlves
I(oy

PcffDrmance
Indrerlorr

Key Activltlss Achlcvements

Pillar l:
Enhancing an
innovativc
research and
development
environment

To enhance
conservation
and preservation
of natural
cultural heritage
through
innovative
research

No. of Iield
schools

Conduct one field school on
paleontological,
archaeological, and
paleoecology research

I field school
on
paleontological,
archaeological
and
paleoecology
research was
conducted

7o work
completed

Document and develop the
Taita Taveta world war I

heritage complex

90% ofthe
documentation
and
development of
the Taita Taveta
World War I
heritage
complex was
completed

No. of
nomination
dossiers

Finalize preparation of Gede
nomination dossier for listing
and extension onto the world
hentage list

Draft
nomination
dossier for Gedi
Historic Town
was prepared
and submittcd
to the UNESCO
Secretariat for
completeness
check

No. of local
people

Conservation
education
outreach on
primates and
biodiversity was
can ied out in
Tana River and
Samburu
Counties to 2[,10

people
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I

No. of Cultural
and natural
objects
documented,
preserved, and
dieitized

Document, preserve and
digitize 12,000 cultural
and I natural tangible objects
and intangible heritage

67,609 heritage
collections were
standardized
and digitized

No. of county
registers and
national
repository

Document, digitize and set up
county registers in thirteen
counties and one national
repository of indigenous
knowledge and associated
assets

5 county digital
registers & I
national
repository were
set up

132
publications
were published

No. of
publications

Publish 58 publications
(manuscripts and technical
reports)

No. of open
science forums

Hold 40 Open science forums

268 workshops,
seminars, and
conferences
were held

Hold 20 temporary
Exhibitions

23 temporary
exhibitions for
cultural
exchange were
held

No. of
temporary
exlribitions

No. ofpublic
programs

Hold 80 Interactive Public
programs

97 interactive
public programs
were held

l0 Festivals
were held

No. of cultural
festival
conventions
held

Hold I Cultural festivals
Conventions

2 online
databases for
publication of
biodiversity
data were
maintained

No. of online
databases
maintained

Maintain Online database for
publication of Biodiversity
Data

To enhance
knowledge
sharing on
research and
development
through at least
three platforms

No. of intemal
synposiums
he Id

tlold 4 Intcrnal Symposiums
This was not
done due to lack
of funds

xxlx



National Museums ol Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts
for the year ended June 30,2023.

Striteglc Pillar ObJectlves
I(ey

Pcrfbrmrncs
Indicators

Ksy Aqtivlties Achlevoments

To provide
proof-of-
concept through
biomcdical
rcscarch for six
products
towards
improvement of
national health

No. of reports

Analyze the chemical
conrposition and identify the
active components of ,4.

precalorius for testing in an
animal model for use as a

contraceptive to prevent
pregnancy

Analysis of
chemical
composition of
A. precatorius
and
identification of
active
components for
testing in
animal model
was done and a
report on the
chemical profile
prepared

No. of reports

Carry out preliminary tests to
determine the capacity of at
least one A. precalorius aclive
component to prevent
pregnancy in the anirnal
model

Preliminary
testing to
determine
capacity of A.
precatorius
active
components to
prcvent
pregnancy in
the baboon
model was
undertaken and
a report on
scientific data
prepared

No. of reports

Analyze the chemical
composition and identify the
active components of herbal
formulations for testing in an
animal model for use as

immune boosters againsl
respiratory diseascs including
covtD-19

Analysis of
chemical
composition of
herbal
formulations
and
identification of
active
components lor
testing in the
vervet model
was done and a
report on the
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chemical profile
prepared

No. of reports

Carry out preliminary tests to
determine the capacity of at
least one active herbal
formulation to boos l2t
immune response against
respiratory diseases including
covrD-19

Preliminary
testing of active
cornponents of
the herbal
formulations for
boosting
immune
responses,
engendering
anti-
inflammatory
effects in
vervets that
display
COVID-like
symptoms was
undertaken and
a report on
scientific data
prepared

No. of drugs
and
diagnostics
developed

Test at least one candidate
drug against infectious
diseases

l candidate
drug against
infectious
diseases was
tested

No. of
diagnostic tool
against
infectious
diseases tested

Test at least one diagnostic
tool against infectious disease

I diagnostic
tool against
infectious
diseases was
tested

No. of
antibacterial
phage products
tested

To test at least one
antibacterial phage product

lantibacterial
phage product
was tested

To undertake
research on four
natural and
cultural heritage

No. of farmers
trained

Train farmers on honey
product ion

145 farmers
were trained on
honey
production
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Strateglc Pillar Objectlver
Key

Perfbrmancs
Indicators

Koy Actlvitles Achlovcmcntr

resources for
enhanced
nutrition and
food security

No. of fanncrs
identilied,
recruited,
trained and
supplied with
certified AIV
seeds

Identify, recruit, and train
6000 farmers and supply them
with African indigenous
vegetables (AIV) certified
seeds

12,600 farmers
were identified,
recruited,
trained and
supplied with
Certified seeds

of African
indigenous
vegetables

No. of lanners
trained

Produce 90kg ofspawn
mushrooms and training of
150 farmcrs

This was not
done due to lack
of funds

No. of groups

Introduce prawn farming to at
least three groups in Kilifi and
Kwale through introduction of
culturing technologies and
training of farmers (Blue
Economy)

Preliminary
work to
introduce prawn
farming at
coastal region
was done

To create new
partnerships
including
multilateral,
bilateral,
collaborative
research
agreements, and
community-
based
agreeme nts

No. of
rnultilateral
environmental
agreements
and
conventions

Participate in at least two
multilateral environmental
agreements and convcntions

Participated in 3
multilateral
environmental
agreements and
conventions

No. of PIC-
MAT
Agrecments

Negotiate, prepare and sign at
least one PIC-MAT
agreement

5 PIC-MAT
agreements
were
negotiated,
prepared and
signed to enable
indigenous
knowledge
documentation
and digitization
in 5 counties

No. of
collaborative
agreements

Negotiate, prepare and sign at
least two collaborative
agrcements

I collaborative
agreement was
negotiated,
prepared and
signed
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No. of
collaborative
agreements
with
communities

Sign at least one collaborative
agreernent with the
community.

I collaborative
agreement with
the community
was signed

Pillar 2:
Enhancing
institutional
capacity for
effective and
sustainable
heritage
management

To improve
institutional
capacity
through training
of 175 staff for
effective
management of
biomedical,
natural, and
cultural heritage

No. of
Committees
whose
rnembers are

trained

Undertake statutory related
trainings (Road Safety,
Disability Mainstreaming,
Complaints handling, Gender,
HIV, Asset Management,
National Cohesion, Business
Process Re-Engineering,
Science Technology and
Innovation, Alcohol and Drug
Abuse)

198 staff were
trained on HIV
and Mental
Health
Awareness, 3
were trained on
asset
management
and 64
employees were
sensitized on
Alcohol and
Drug Abuse

No. of P&S
staff and
rcgional
champions
trained

Train 20 Planning and

Strategy Staff and regional
champions on ISO 9001:2015
standard.

l8 P&S staff
and regional
champions were
trained on ISO
9001:2015

No. of ISO
9001 :2015
Certificates
acquired

Acquire ISO 9001:2015
certification

ISO 9001:2015
Certification
was not
acquired

No. of senior
management
and internal
auditors
trained

To train 20 senior
management and intemal
auditors on internal audit
function for effective heritage
management

35 Senior
Management
Staff and
Intemal
Auditors were
trained

No. of P&S
stafftrained

To train l0 Planning and
Strategy staff on integrated
monitoring and evaluation
framework including PC
target setting training

Training of
Planning and
Strategy staff
did not take
place

Tlain l0 Drivers on defensive
driving skills to support field-
based research

Training was
not undertaken
due to lack of
funds

No. of drivers
trained
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Strateglo Pillar ObJectlves
kuy

Porformencs
Indlcatoru

Koy Attlvitles Achleyementr

No. of sccurity
guards trained

Training of l0 security guards
on fire-fighting techniques to
enhance conducive researclr
environment

Training was
not undertaken
due to lack of
funds

No. of IIR and
senior
management
staff members
trained

Train 20 human resource and
senior managcment staff on
new legislations and best
practices for supporting
research and effective
heritage management

9 Senior
Management
Staff were
trained

No. of senior
staff members
sensitized

Sensitize 20 senior staff
members on procurement
processes to support research
function

47 Scnior Staff
were trained

No. of
customer carc
staff trained

Train 20 Custorner Care staff
on customer expericncc skills
to support heritage
management

Training was
nol undertaken
due to lack of
funds

No. ofstaff
trained

Train l0 staff members on
new technology for heritage
collection, management, and
dissemination of information

Training was
not undertaken
due to lack of
lunds

No. of staff
trained

Train 20 staff on animal
welfare and ethics for
scientific research.

200 staff were
trained

No. of staff
trained

Train l5 staffon neuroscience
techniques

Training was
not undertaken
due to lack of
funds

No. of ICT
and AIV
personnel
trained

Al4: Train 20 ICT and AV
personnel across the region on
New Technologies (Security,
Database, Cloud, Video
Photography, Video Editing,
Network and Web
Management

Training was
not undertaken
due to lack of
funds

No. of staff
trained

Train l0 staff on Lithic
Analysis to enhance
archcological collection

I 0 staff werc
trained on
Lithic Analysis
to enhance
archeological
collection
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No. of SP

developed
Development of New
Strategic Plan

Development of
2023-2027 SP
process was
initiated

To strengthen
management
framework by
developing and
reviewing l0
policies

No. of
intellectual
policies
developed

Develop lntel lectual Property
Policy

Draft
lntellectual
Property Policy
was developed

No. of policies
developed

Develop Financial
Managemcnt Policy

Drafl Financial
Management
Policy was
developed

No. of intemal
audit charter
and audit
procedures
manual
reviewed

Review internal audil charter
and audit procedures Manual

lnternal Audit
Charter and
Draft Audit
Procedures
Manual were
developed

No. of
reviewed
Career
Progression
Guidelines

Review Career Progression
Guidelines

Process of
reviewing
Career
Guidclines was
initiated

No. of Policies
reviewed

Review Research Policy

50% ofthe
Research Policy
review work
was completed

No. of ICT
Policies
reviewed

Review Institutional ICT
Policy Document and
guidelines including
awareness

ICT Policy
review was
initiated

No. of Policies
developed

A26: Develop Human
Resource Training Policy

Drall Human
Resource
Training Policy
was developed

To achieve
l00yo
compliance and
corporate

No. of
quarterly
reports

Procure goods, services, and
works & submit quarterly
reports in line with laid down
legal framework (PPRA)

4 quarterly
reports were
submitted to
PPRA
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Stratoglc Plllar ObJectlvB
Key

Perlbrlnanat
Indioatore

Key Actlvities AchlevemQnts

governance
through
e ffective
performance
management

No. of
quarterly
reports
submittcd

Undertake regular intemal
audit assignments and submit
monthly reports to
managelrent and quartcrly
reports to the Board of
directors

4 quarterly
reports were
submitted to
BARMC

No. of
quarterly
financial
reports
submitted

Prepare and submit quartorly
financial reports in line with
legislative requirements

4 quarterly
financial reports
were submitted
to The National
Treasury and
Economic
Planning

managcment
committee
quarterly
reports
submitled

lmplementation of activities
by management committees
and submission of quafierly
reports to the board of
directors and relevanl
statutory agencies

Implementation
of activities by
management
committees and
submission of
quarterly
reports to the
board of
directors and
relevant
statutory
agencies was
done

No. of reports
subn, itted

Monthly and quarterly
submission of reports to
various statulory agencies

Monthly and
quarterly
submission of
reports to
various
statutory
agencies was
done

No. of
volumes
updated

Update 22 volumes of Kenya
Law Report Volumes

There were no
new issues for
updating

No. of
reviewed
NMK and
Heritage ACT
2006

Review NMK ACT 2006

The Heritage
and Museums
Bill, 2021 was
put beforc the
Senate and
National
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Avhlovlmentc

Assembly for
revtew

Percentage of
renovation and
restoration of
Gede Ruins

Renovate and restore 100% of
the Gede Ruins.

35%. of
renovation and
restoration work
was completed

No. of animal
breeding cages
constructed

Construction of l0 animal
breeding cages at IPR

l2 animal
breeding cages
were
constructed

Percentage of
work
Completed

l00oZ erection and
completion of an ablution
block, paving works, and
landscapirrg works at Vasco
Da Gama

60% ofthe
work was
completed

Percentage of
construction
work
Completed

100% Construction of staff
offices at IPR

25%. of the
construction
work ofstaff
offices at IPR
was completed

Percentage of
renovalion
work
completed

Renovation of Kenyatta
House Maralal.

This was not
done due to lack
of funds

Percentage of
renovation
work
completed

Renovation of [okitaung
Kenyatta House.

TOYo of the
renovation work
was completed

Percentage of
construction
work
completed

Construction of ablution
block at Fort Teman.

l0% ofthe
construction
work was
completed

Percentage of
renovation
work

letedcom

Renovation ofJaramogi
Oginga Odinga Mausoleum

80% of the
renovation work
was completed
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Key Activldes Achloviments

No. of
building with
asbestos

replaced with
altemative
roofing
material

Rcmoval of asbestos and re-
roofing at IPR

A proposal for
funding was
prepared and
submitted to the
Sports, Arts,
and Social
Development
Fund. Proposal
is awaiting
aDDroval

percentagc of
restoration
works
completed

Restoration of Thim-lich
Ohinga for conservation of
Heritage.

25o/o of the
restoration
works at
Thimlich
Ohinga was
completed

Percentage of
restoration
works
completed

Restore l-arnu Museum for
conservation of heritage.

Restoration
works at [-amu
Museurr 1007o

completed

Financial
managemcnt
system 100%
operational

Strenglhening Financial
Management System

Migration to a
higher version
of the system
was effected,
accountants
were trained
and Sub
business
module
procured

Percentage of
internet access
enhancement

Upgrade lnstitutional
Technology Network
equipment and enhance
Intemet access

Intemet
connection
bandwidth was
upgraded to
l00mbs

No. of sitcs
with brandcd
signages
installed

Installation of Branded
Signage for 3 NMK Sites and

Museums

Installation of
Branded
Signagc for 3

NMK Sites and
Museums was
done
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To enhance the
visibility of
NMK'S
products and
services

No. of
muscum
stations FAM
trips
conducted

Conduct FAM
( Farniliarization Trips) for 20
Joumalists from various
media houses to 2 NMK
Stations

Familiarization
Trips were not
conducted due
to lack of funds

No. of nrarket
research
conducted

Conduct rnarket research for
at least 5 identified NMK
products

5 market
research for
identified
products were
undertaken
Potential
candidate drugs
are underwent
testing for the
markct

No. of
products
validated and
developed

Validate and Develop at least
2 products for the market

No. of fanners
trained

Train 300 farmer groups
(6000 farmers) in African
indigeuous vegetables value
chain and supply certified
seeds to them

12,600 farmers
were trained on
African
indigenous
vegetables
value chain and
also supplied
with certified
seeds

l0 articles and
engagement
activities took
place

To identify and
develop route to
market for 5

entreprencurial
opportunities

Public engagement and
sensitization as well as media
engagement to determine
product potential in the
market

I MOU was
implemented
(MOU between
IPR and Rongo
University)

No. of articles
and
engagement
activities

No. of MOUs
signed

Implement 4 MOUs with
leaming institutions through
which learners (students on
attachment, intemship,
students on degree programs)
pay for training at IPR and
DNRR

I intemational
exhibition took
place

Pillar 3:
Promoting
entrepreneuria
I opportunities
arising from
Research and
Development
for sustaina ble
heritage
managem€nt

To enhance 5
strategic
partnerships
with key
stakeholders in
heritage
management
value chain No. of

exhibitions in
various
international
events

Showcase Kenya's cultural
lleritage, Sporting legends,
Trade and Invest through the
"Kcnya House" Program
(Digital and Physical)
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SEsteglc Pillar ObJectlver
Key

Performanco
Indlcators

Koy Actlvldes Achlsv6moEt!

To gtow income
from rnultiple
and diverse
sources by 0.5o4

No. of Expos
attended

Attend 2 Expos to showcase
NMK's achievements and

seek out new potential
partnerships to promote
NMK's heritage research and
products

This did not
take place duc
to lack of funds

No. of lecture
series held

Hold 3 lecture series as part of
intemally developed events
for awareness creation and
expansion of revenue stream

One lecture on
Parkinson's
disease at IBRO
School was
carried out by
IPR

No. of
meetings
attended

Enhance engagernent of 5
stakeholders in the Tourism
and MICE industry to
increase sales of facility hire
by l0%o

20 meetings
were attended

No. of
monthly social
media reports

Enhance digital presence

through 5 social media
platforms to continuously
create awarencss of various
entrepreneurial opportunities

5 social rnedia
reporls were
prepared

No. of
interactive
website
developed and
operationalize
d

Develop and operationalize a

new interactive NMK website
for marketing and brand
promotion.

I interactive
NMK website
was developed
and
operationalized

No. of
intemational
markets
identified and
supplied with
butterflv DuDae

Identify and supply to two
new intcmational markets for
export of butterfly pupae
during the year.

lintemational
market was
identified and
supplied with
butterfly pupae

No. of intenral
proposal
evaluation
systems
developed

Develop an intemal proposal
evaluation system to increase
success in grant applications
by holding inter-directorate
consultative meetings

'lhis was not
accomplished
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Establish an
Anti- Doping
Laboratory at
IPR to test all
sportsmen and
women for
doping

Percentage of
construction
work
completed

Construct and equip an Anti-
Doping laboratory

Proposal to
construct and
equip Anti-
Doping
laboratory and
BQs were done.
Funds are being
sought from the
Sports, Arts,
and Social
Development
Fund

NMK rnonitors the progress towards achievement of the Revised Strategic Plan (2020-2023) through:

i. Preparation of annual implerrentation plans for the period 2022-2023 by all offices and

directorates.

ii. Translation of the annual implementation plans into annual performance contracts and annual

monitoring plans.

iii. Development and issuance ofprogress reports at all levels.

In addition, NMK will undertake a rigorous and independent evaluation of completed and/or ongoing

activities to determine the relevance and fulfilment of strategic objectives, development efficiency,

effectiveness, impact and sustainability. The evaluation ofperformance has been done and the 2023-2027

Strategic Plan is under development in line with the revised guidelines for the preparation of the fifth-

generation strategic plans.
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6. Corporole Governonce Slotemenl
Corporate govemance is the process by which institutions are directed, controlled and held to account

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

National Museums ofKenya Board of Directors is responsible fbr overall management and is accountable

to the Minister in charge of the Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife, Culture and Heritage for ensuring that the

institution complies with the law and the highest standards of best practicc in corporate govcmance and

ethics. The Directors are committed to the need to couduct the operations ofthe institutiorr with integrity,

in accordance with generally acceptcd corporate practice, and cndorse the intemationally developed

principles ofcorporate govemance. All the Board members are non-executive including the Chairman of

the Board except the Director Ceneral who is the chielexecutive officer. The Cabinet Secretary in charge

of Sports, Culture and the Arts appoints the Directors for a period of three years in accordance with the

constitution.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at least four times a year. The Directors are given appropriate and timely information so

that they can maintain full and effective control over strategic, financial, operational and compliance

issues. The Board has delegated the day-to-day operations to the Director General who is the Chief

executive officer. The Board nonetheless retains responsibility for establishing and maintaining the

institutions internal controls in financial, operational and compliance issues as well as implementing

strategies for the long-term success ofthe instirution.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three standing committees, which meet regularly under the terms of reference set by the

Board. In addition, there are two ad hoc committees; one for conducting interviews ofsenior staffand the

other on Rules and Regulations ofthe Heritage Act. These committces are as follows:

The Audit Committee

The Audit & Risk Management Committee fomrs a key element in the govemance proccss by providing

an independent experl assessment of the activities of top nanagement, the quality of risk management,

financial reporting, financial management and intemal audit, to thc board of directors.
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The Finance and Establishment committee

The Committee is the prime mechanism through which the Board of Directors of National Museums of

Kenya (NMK) ensures that the institution's decisions, policies and practice in relation to Finance, HR,

procurement, infrastructural development and all processes are in full compliance with relevant policies,

and statutory requirements, regulations, Mwongozo Code ofCovemance as well as the Board Charter.

Research Committee

The Research Committee of the Board generally deliberates all matters pertaining to resealch policy and

management.

Ad hoc committee (as and when formed)

Ad hoc committees may be formed for different tasks as determined by the Board for example conducting

of interviews for senior staff.

All board committees make recommendations to the full Board of Directors for consideration.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

These are processes for assuring achievement of the organization's objectives in operational effectiveness

and efficiency, reliable financial reporting, and compliance with laws, regulations and policies. This

involves everlhing that controls the risks ofthe organization and relates to authorization and approval of

transactions, segregation of duties, supervision and nronitoring of the activities, proper record keeping,

ICT controls, valuation, custody and physical safeguards of the assets of the organization. It is the means

by which the organization's resources are directed, monitored, and measured. It plays an important role in

detecting and preventing fraud and protecting the organization's resources, both physical (e.g., machinery

and property) and intangible (e.g., reputation or intellectual property such as trademarks).

At the organizational level, intemal control objectives relate to the reliability offinancial reporting, timely

feedback on the achievement ofoperational or strategic goals, compliance with laws and regulations. At

the specific transaction level, intemal control refers to the actions taken to achieve a specific objective

(e.g. how to ensure the organization's payments to third parties are for valid services rendered). Intemal

control procedures reduce process variation, leading to more outcomes that are predictable. The

effectiveness of the intemal controls depends on:
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The Managemcnt

The responsibility of ensuring that the internal controls are in place and are duly adhered to rests with the

management. The Chief Executive Officer (the top manager) has the overall responsibility of designing

and implcmenting an effective internal control system and setting the "tone at the top" that affects integrity

and ethics and other factors ofa positive control environment. He fulfils this duty by providing leadership

and direction to senior managers and reviews the way they are controlling the resources of the

organization. Senior managers, in turn, assign responsibilities for establishment of more specific intemal

control policies and procedures to personnel responsible for the various dcpartmental functions.

Board of Directors

Management is accountable to the Board of Directors, who provides governance, guidance and oversight.

Effective Board members are objcctive, capable and inquisitive. They also have knowledge of the entity's

activities and environment and commit the time necessary to fulfil their Board responsibilities.

Management cannot at any one point in time ovenide controls and ig'nore or stifle communications from

subordinates, enabling a dishonest management, which intentionally misrepresents results to cover its

tracks. Existence of a strong activc Board particularly whcn coupled with effective upward

communications channels and capable financial, legal and intemal audit fttnctions is often best able to

identifr and correcl such a problem.

CUSTOMER SERVICE CHARTER

The Service Charter puts in place service standards that guide the National Museums of Kenya

management and staffin provision ofhigh services to its clients. This is keeping in line with existing laws,

rules, regulations, nonns, professional ethics and most irnportant-customer expectations. The service

Charter thus identifies areas in which the NMK operates, defines the responsibilities of the management

and staff, describcs the rights of clients and identifies key quality control indicators that will enable

delivery of high-quality services by NMK to all stakeholders/clients and the general public at large.

xliv



National Museums of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

DIRECTORS' ALLOWANCES AND LOANS

The aggregate amount paid to Directors allowances for services rendered during 202212023 ltnancial year

are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. There werc no Directors loans at any timc during the

year.

Board meetings

During the financial year 2022-2023 (l"tJuly,2022- 30'h}une,2023), National Museums ofKenya Board of

Directors a total of ten (10) board meetings were held. All Board members attended the meetings as

required. Among the main topics discussed in the meetings were budgets and financial reports,

performance contract reports, human resource matters, developlnent projects, intemal audit reports and

repons on the core mandate of heritage research and strategic issues.

Appointment and removal of a member, succession plan

Appointment of the Board Chainnan and Board rnembers is provided for under section 6 ofthe National

Museums and Heritage Act No. 6 of2006 where the appointing Authority is the President and the Cabinet

Secretary for the Iine Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage respectively. Their removal is also

provided for under Section 8 ofthe Act. Whenever there is a vacancy in an appointive Board position, the

vacancy is filled by the appointing Authority by way of publication ofa member's details in the Kenya

Gazette.

Board induction, training and development
During the Financial year 2022-2023, Board Members underwent induction in April,2023. The induction

was delivered by the State Corporations Advisory Committee (SCAC) in conjunction with the Institute of

Certified Public Secretaries ofKenya (ICS).

Board and Membe r performance:
In line with "Mwongozo", the Board conducted self-evaluation for Financial year 2022-2023 (l" July,

2022-3Oth June, 2023) under the guidance of the SCAC officials. Board self-evaluation is an intemal tool

to assist the Board to iurprove on its performance and that of NMK by instituting appropriate remedial

strategies.
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Conflict of interest

Disclosure ofconflict ofinterest was made by members at every Board meeting during the financial year.

The position on existence ofconflict of interest or Iack thereofwas recorded in the minutes as appropriate

with Board members signing the conflict of interest register that was made available during all Board

meetings.

Board remuneration

Board members were paid allowances in line with the relevant Govemment of Kenya circulars and
guidelines.

Ethics and conduct

The NMK Board has adopted high standards and applies strict rules ofconduct, basedon the best corporate

practices. As part ofthis commitment, the Board has adhered to good corporate governance by embracing

the principles of good corporate govemance including: Observing high standards of ethical and moral

behaviour, acting in the best interests of the National Museums of Kenya and upholding their fiduciary

responsibilities and duty of care, acting honestly and in good faith to create a culture built on principles

of integrity, accountability and transparency.

Governance Audit

Mwongozo requires Governance Audit to be conducted by a member regulated by the Institute ofCertified

Public Secretaries of Kenya (ICPSK) and accredited for that purpose. The Board looks forward to

undertake Govemance Audit once the list ofaccredited govemance auditors with the requisite guidelines

are published in the Kenya Cazette.
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7. Monogemenl Discussion ond Anolysis
a) THE ENTITY'S OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The National Museums of Kenya internally generated revenue for twelve months stood at Kshs.

295,953,197 Govemment of Kenya Recun'ent and development grants of Kshs.l ,106,790,000 and

Kshs.18,523,600 respectively and Kshs. 38,790,233 from Sports, Arts & Social Development Fund. The

Management noted that the organization heavily relies on rcvenue from non-exchange transactions, which

caters for its personnel emoluments and operation and maintenance. The operational and financial

performance of the organisation for the year under review and last five-year period as indicated in the

table/charts below.

REVENUE GENERATION FY 2022-2023
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REVENUE ANALYSIS FOR THE PAST FIVE YEARS
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b) Entity's key projects

The NMK during the year had ongoing projects as explained below:

Renovation of Prehistoric sites,

This will entail renovation of various sites and monuments that urgently need serious repairs and

maintenance such as Gede Building Complex, Vasco Da Cama Pillar and Maktau. The works are ongoing

most of which are at advanced completion stages.

c) Entity's compliance with statutory requirements

The NMK Management has over the years 5 years managed to comply to the statutory requirements except

for the amendments made on filing of PAYE in May,2023 for the years 2016 to 2023. The arrears

amounting to Kshs.l39,49l,66l which relates to principal amount of Kshs1,230,244 accumulated

penalties of IGhs. 134,566,779 and accrued interesl of Kshs.3,694,638. National Social Security Fund

(N.S.S.F) arrears amounting to Kshs. I 55,2 14,71 8 which relates lo accrued interest and penalties. Pension

anears relating to accumulated interest accrued amounting to Kshs,388,996,203.

d) Major risks facing the organization

The Board is ultimately accountable for the NMK risk management process and system of intemal

control. In terms of a mandate by the Board, the Audit Committee monitors the risk management process

and systems of intemal control of the NMK. The Board oversees the activities of the Audit Committee,

the NMK intemal and extemal auditors.

The objective of risk management in NMK is to establish an integrated and effective risk management

framework where important risks are identified, quantified and managed. The NMK risk management

process that is implemented across the NMK supports the risk managernent process across all the three

directorate operating platforms. The NMK priority risk items, together with key measures taken to

mitigate these risks, are listed in the table.
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RISKANALYSN
Rlsk Descrlntlon of Rhk MiHpatl,on of Rlsk

,:<

GI

q

O

Legal and

regulatory

compliance

Failure to comply with laws and

regulations may result in fines,

prosecution or damage to

reputation.

Legal department in the different operating

platforms support operational managemenl

and monitor regulatory developments and,

where necessary, obtain expert legal advice

for the effective implementation ol

compliance initiatives.

Confidentiality Unauthorized access and sharing ol

confi dential Museum information.

Policies and procedures are in place

x
tr

ti

6l

:E

Availability,

recruitment and

retention o{

skilled resources

There is a shortage of Skilled

labour, particularly a shortage of

qualified and experienced

researchers.

The employment, recruitment and retention

strategies are in place.

Availabilitli and

support staff

The availability of skilled support

staff are critical to the Serviccs

rendered by the National Museums

of Kenya

Support staff recruitment and strategies

in place.

Monitoring of staff satisfaction,

movement and staffs' profiles.

:

2

G

C)

Regulatory risk The risk of a change in laws and

regulations applicable to the

National Museums of Kenya.

- NMK has inrplemented proactive

engagement with relevant bodies and

stakeholders.

Availability and

cost of

Capital,

financing

And liquidity

risk

The cost and availability of capital

for strategic expansion and/or the

renovations of existrng sites and

monuments has been affected by

reduced govemment funding and

lcss intemally generated revue to

cater for operation and

maintenance.

Long+erm planning of capital

requiremenls and cash flow forecasting.

Monitoring of cash-generating capacity

within the NMK

Proactive and long-term agreements with

relevant organiza tions.
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Power ol

funders, tariff

and fee risks

The risk relating to the impact on

tariffs and fees

Resulting from the shift of the

relative negotiating power towards

funders away from service

providers in the healthcare industry.

Proactive monitoring and

NMK engagement with

Ireasury.

negotiation by

the National

u

,:1

2

(l

(J

Credit risk Ihe organization's credit risk is

primarily attributable to its other

receivables and bank balances.

- Intemal control systems in place

- Treasury policy.

The amounts of receivables

presented in the statement ol

financial position, estimated by the

organization's management based

on prior experience and their

assessment ofthe current economic

environment.

,:l

&

(l

a

6l

Service failures The risk relates to incidents ofpoor

service or failure to respond

effectively to complaints.

Customer satisfaction surveys

Complaints monitoring.

Quality management systems.
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RISI( ANALYSIS
Rlsk Descrlntion of Rlik Miflretlon of Rlsk

.tt

&

(.)

Fire and allied

perils

Fire and allied perils causing

damage or business lntenuption.

All departments have plans to deal with

disasters and employ extensive fire-

fighting and detection systems, and havc

comprehensive maintenance processes to

reduce the risk.

Comprehensive insurance to deal with

financial impact of potential disasters is

in place except for collections.

Health rclated

risks such as

pandemics and

related perils

Risk ofloss ofrevenue as a result of

closure of galleries.

Exploring other ways of generating

revenue and looking for bail out from the

govcmment.

e) Material arrears in statutory and other financial obligations

The organization has major non-compliance statutory issues that may expose it to potential contingent

liabilities as illustrated below.

Descrlptlon Prlnelpal Pcnaltlcr Interect Total Amount
National Social Security
Fund Arrears t55.2t4.7 t8 t55,214,718

Pension Arrears 388,996,203 388.996,203

Income Tax 1,254,56r 6,2 17, 108 '7,471,669

Value Added Tax 2.094.855 6,885,770 8.980,62s

Pay as You Earn t,230,244 134,566,780 3,694,638 t39,491,662
Totrl 1,230,244 137.916.196 561,008,437 700.154.877
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8. EnvironmentalandSustainability Reporting

i) Sustainability slrategy and profile

The National Museurns ofKenya will require a projected total budget ofabout Kshs 17.55 billion over

the next three years to implement the planned development programmes and activities in this Strategic

Plar (2020-2022). 'fhese resourccs are anticipated that 50%, (Kshs 8.8 bitlion),30% (Kshs.5.3billion) and

20% (Kshs.3.5 billion) will come from extemal sources, intemally generated and the exchequcr

respectively. Mobilizing extemal resources will require appropriate collaboration and linkages with

industry players. The resource mobilization will be enhanced through the following key strategies:

a) Ensuring that seventy percent (70%) ofthe total income is generated from intemal and external

sources, with exchequer providing 30%o.

b) Operationalizing Cost Centres within the directorates of NMK

c) Establish a Museum Entrepreneurship Development and Marketing Centre for coordinating product

development, commercialization and marketing in collaboration with industry players.

d) Develop a legal framework for establishing and operationalising the Endowment Fund for

enhancing resource mobilization.

e) Bid for ring fencing ofresource for its conservation and heritage management with The National

Treasury.

Clobally, natural and cultural heritage are increasingly threatened with destruction not only by the

traditional causes of decay, but also by changing social and economic conditions which aggravate the

situation with even more formidable phenomena of damage or destruction. African nations face the

challenge to develop and implement strategies that effectively address the need for balancing heritage

conservation and other development needs. Convention parties to UNESCO therefore seek to effectively

manage existing properties by recognising, documenting and formalising traditional management systems

and fully incorporating them into existing manageurent mechanisms. The challenges for Sub-Saharan

Africa to build on its limited archaeological heritage and realize economic benefit from sustainable

development ofthese important assets is largely due to lack ofexpertise and available experience.

The top management especially the accounting officer should make reference to sustainable efforts,

broad trends in political and macroeconomic affecting sustainability priorities, reference to intemational

best practices and key achievements and failure.
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ii) Environmental performance

The NMK is committed to protection and enhancement of the local and global environment, health and

safety in natural and cultural heritage research and collection management. NMK as an institution, its

institutes, centers, staff and stakeholders are expected to consciously think about their role in managing

Environmental health and safety (EHS) issucs and act in ways consistent with:

i. Reduction ofnegative social and environmental risks

ii. Conservation and prudent utilization ofresoulces

iii. Respect for biodiversity and natural systenrs.

Here is an outline of some of the many succcsses achieved:

i. EHS committee: NMK has established EHS committee, which has promoted environment,

health and safety inspections and undcrtaken awareness and education. Such as raising

awareness about benefits ofusing protective materials in the laboratories where chemicals and

reagents are used in research, collections and exhibitions.

ii. Energy efficiency: Ensuring energy efficiency and conservation throughout our operations is

important, as it impacts both our greenhouse gas (GHG) footprint and our cost structure. NMK

has appropriately replaced incandescent bulbs with energy saving bulbs.

iii. Water conservation: Our operations are not relatively water intensive but as national/ global

water consumption has increased at a fast pace we work to use water carefully and responsibly

in our operations. Primary water uses include mainly sanitation and employee consumption.

NMK is constantly investing in water conservation by having timed taps, checking water

leakages as routine measures to minimize water wastage.

iv. Tree planting: NMK has endeavored to invest to support seedling production at the Nairobi

Botanic Garden and through funded projects at community sites. Additionally, NMK has

participated in tree planting exercises involving staffand rnanagement.

v. Biodiversity conservation: NMK has a long track record of supporting biodiversity research

projects. Additionally, NMK has been a key and relevant led agency in multi-agency

committees for Environmental matters in accordance with the Environmental management and

coordination Act, EMCA 1999 championing for biodiversity conseryation.

vi. Climate strategy: NMK incorporate climate change considerations into all aspects of our

business strategy. Among the climate change considerations are events can threaten business
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continuity. We are continually refining oul disaster response plans and wc recently constructed

the sea wall to protect the Fort Jesus Museum.

Environmental audits: Environmental audits are undertaken as per the regulatory standards

and sound environmental practice.

Stakeholder engagement: NMK has a systematic approach to stakeholder engagement. Every

two years, NMK runs open days/scientific conferences to share the research activities and

findings with key stakeholders which range from research partners, NGOs, community groups,

govemment agencies, research institutions and scientific academies. This engagement has bcen

essential in aiding NMK stay abreast of current trends, perspectives and policy malters that

affect our service, customers and collaborators.

Physical structures: NMK has provided for adequate signage and visitor information within

the Museum compound.

Dust management: NMK has provided for well paved roads and car parks limiting dust

emission from vehicles within the compound.

x

iii) Employee welfare

The policics guiding the hiring process are borrowed from the Public Service Commission-Human

Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for the Public Service, May, 2016 and the NMK Terms and

Conditions ofService and Procedures Manual.

Recruitment is undertaken on the basis of fair competition and merit; representation of Kenya's diverse

communities; adequate and equal oppom.rnities to all gender, youth, members ofall ethnic groups, persons

with disabilities and minorities.

All vacant positions are filled in cornpetitively through advertisements, followed by interviews conducted

by relevant committees.

Policies are reviewed after every five (5) years.

Efforts made in:

a) Improving skills and managing careers; mentoring, training and development ofstaff,job rotation,

staff attend seminars and workshops relevant to their areas of specialization.

b) Appraisal- done annually
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c) Reward systems-award ofsalary bonus

It is the policy of the National Museums ofKenya to enforce appropriate measures to control and monitor

health and safety procedures to ensure a safe and healthy working environment for all employees, and

those who may be affected by our undertakings. The Health Safety and Environment (HSE) Committce

has the ultimate responsibility for health and safety in the organization, and the protection of its
envlronment

The National Museums of Kenya is comrnitted to protection and enhancement of thc local and global

environment, health and safcty in in natural and cultural heritage research and collection management,

National Museums of Kenya as an organization, its institutcs and centres, staff and stakeholders are

expected to consciously THNK about their role in managing EHS issues and ACT in ways consistent

with the following fundamental principles:

a) (Reduction) Commitment to reduction ofnegative social and environmental risks,

b) Conservation and prudent utilization ofresources and

c) Respect for biodiversity and natural systems.

iv) Market place practices-

a) Responsiblecompetitionpractice:

The National Museums ofKenya is believing in inclusivity and stakeholder engagement. For this reason,

the National Museums of Kenya engages regularly with stakeholders in Education as well as those in the

Tourism sector as they represent the largest client groups visiting the Museums.

All Museum gate fees are Eazelle, and are very competitive in the market. They ensure that majority of

Kenyans can afford to visit a Museum that is near them. Other prices, like Venue hire, are currently being

revisited because ofthe Covid-19 restrictions on permissible numbers, and spacing at the select venues.

In a bid to embrace safety during the pandemic, we are now accepting mobile money and card payment

only at our sites. This has greatly increased accountability at our various ticketing offices around the

country.
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b) Responsible Supply Chain and Supplier relations:

The National Museums of Kenya ensures thal the Finance Tcam, the Procurement Team and the

Accounting Officcr arc working togcther. All procurement must be approved by the Accounting Officer

who is the Director General. The Director General will only approve procurement of items he is sure NMK

can afford to pay for.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement:

One of thc largcst consumer groups at the National Museums olKenya are schools. NMK therefore has

to be extremely careful in the language used in thc adverts, and the placement of the adverts. We are also

careful on the typc of sponsors we seek for events targeting children. We are careful to not to target the

children directly, but to go through their guardians; teachers and parents. Our advertising is sensitive to

the diverse narure of Kenya's population.

d) Product stewardship:

NMK is in constant communication with target group leads like Schools, and Tour Operators who bring

feedback from their clients; the student, teachers and tourists. This has allowed us to ensure that all visitor

feedback is taken seriously and addrcssed with urgcncy. There are also Visitor Books whose content is

analyzed by the Public Relations Department, and an intemal committee assesses the feedback.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Mushroom Research, Culture and Promotion in Kenya
Mushroom cultivation is an emerging crop in Kenya as an agribusiness opportunity and a climate smart

agricultural biotechnology that converts waste to nutritious, protein rich food. There are two main

mushrooms that are cultivated in Kenya conrmonly known as Agaricus bisporus (Button mushrooms) and

Pleurotus species (oyster mushrooms). Agaricus bisporus is the most cultivated mushroom globally and

in Kenya it accounts for 950lo ofthe cultivated mushrooms. The second most cultivatcd mushroom species

is Pleurotus ostre atas, Pleurotus floridus and Pleurotus abalonus. Mushrooms are highly recognized due

to their good flavor, economic gains (high market demand), high nutritional value and medicinal attributes.

National Muscums ofKenya through Botany Deparlment, mycology section is involved in production of

high quality, Iow cost mushroom spawn since 2005. Mycology section offers advice and trains farmers

and school pupils in mushroom cultivation and promotes mushroom cultivation, utilization, consumption

nd commercialization in Kenya. Mycology plays key role in collection, identification, domestication,

nservation of wild mushrooms.
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Photos showing studcnts at Canon Kituri secondary school in Taita County being trained on mushroom

cultivation process. (a) Substratc prcparation proccss (b) Prcparation ofbuckets for holding mushroonr

substrate (c) Buckets filled with substrate at incubation stage and a bag with ready mushrooms. The

training was held 8'r' Fcbruary 2023.

Coastal Forcst Conseryation Unit

Kipepco Program Butterfly Farnting and Promotion of Beekccping

Kipepeo project links conservation and development at Arabuko Sokoke Forest (ASF), on the North coast

of Kenya in Kilifi County. The objective of the Kipepeo project is to help develop positive attitudes

towards conservation of the ASI' lry creating conservation incentives that include income generating

opportunity lrom forest butterflies. The Forest adjacent communities breed and expon live butterflies all

ovcr the World through Kipepeo which also markcts other nature-based products locally like honcy. The

nature-based enterprise, Butterfly farming and lleekeeping has contlibuted irnmensely lo forest

conservatiou and also inrploved its status internationally. Butterfly farmcrs havc a positive attitudc to

forest conservation and havc been instrumcntal in nronitoring the forest and reporling illcgal activitics in

thc forcst.

Kipepco (Swahili for butterfly) is a nature based entcrprisc prrlcct ploviding income and livelihood to

pcoplc living Arabuko Sokokc in coastal Kenya,' rc projcct is adniinistered by National Muscurns of

Kcnya. This provides an inceltive for the local rural population to conscrve the high diversity forests lrorn
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which the products are derived. Kipepeo seeks to provide a tangiblc link between conservation and

livelihood.

Thc project markets and exports buttcrfly pupa, also undertake insects propagation, value addition to

honey and honey products supplied by the community. The butterfly pupa are exported to the butterfly

exhibit industry to the clients in the temperate regions Europc and Nonh America where the butterflies

add welcome tropical colour to the exhibits. The pure organic honey produced by local population leaving

adjacent the forest are processed, packaged and sold at Kipepeo domestically.

Photo: Processing of honey and some honey products for Kipepeo program

lix



National Museums of Kenya
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the yeer endcd June 30, 2023,

9. Reporl of the Direclors
The Drrectors submit thcir report together with the audited financlal statements for the year ended June

30,2023, whrch show the state oflhe Organizatrons affairs.

Rcsults

The results ofthe Organrzatrons for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page I to 4

Board of Directors

The members ofthe Board of Drrectors who served during the year are as shown on page xri to xvri.

Surplus remission

In accordance with Regulation 219(2) of the Pubhc Frnancral Management (Natronal Governmcnt)

Regulahons, regulatory did not make any surplus entrties shall remrt into consolidated fund, nrnety per

centum of its surplus funds reported rn thc audrted financial statements after the end of each Ftnancial

Year. The entrty dunng the year (FY 2023 Kshs. Nil) and hcnce no remrttance to the Consolidated Fund.

Auditors

The Audltor General rs responsrble for the statutory audit of the organizatron rn accordance with Article

229 ofthe Constitution of Kenya and the Pubhc Aud( Act 2015, which empowers the Audltor General to

nomrnate other auditors to carry out the audit on hrs behalf.

By Order of thc Board

hQrut-rg,
N^ ", fu!.Afuy (; Vurg4 signature: t|r,r/r.r}L s l+f zaz4Date:

Corporetc Secrctrry to thc Board
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l0.Slotement of Direclors Responsibililies
Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 23 of the National Museums and

Heritage Act of 2006, requires the Directors to prepare tlnancial statements. The financial statements

should give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofthc National Museums ofKenya at the end ofthe

financial yearlperiod and the operating results of the Organization for that yearlperiod. The Directors are

also required to ensure that the Organization keeps proper accounting records, which disctose with

reasonable accuracy the financial position of the organization. The Directors are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets ofthe NationaI Museums ofKenya.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the organization's financial

statements, which give a true and fair view of thc state ofaffairs of the organization for and as at the end

ofthe financial year ended on June30,2023.

This responsibility includes:

i. Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

effective tkoughout the reporting period;

ii. Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the entity;

iii. Designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

misstatements, whethcr due to enor or fraud;

iv. Safeguarding the assets ofthe organization;

v. Selecting and appllng appropriate accounting policies; and

vi. Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the organizalions financial statements, which have been prepared

using appropriate accounling policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in

onformity with Intemational Public Scctor Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required

y the PFM Act and the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion that the organization's

nancial statements give a true and fair view ofthe statc oforganization's transactions during the financial

ear ended June 30, 2023 and ofthe organization's financial position as at that date. The Directors further

onfirm the completeness of the accounting recolds maintained for the organization, that have been relied
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upon in the preparation ofthe organization financial statements as well as the adequacy ofthe systems of
internal fi nancial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the organization will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date ofthis statement.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The organization's financiar statements approved by the Board on rgth March 2024 andsigned on its
behalfby:

\
Mr Edwin Abonyo

Chairmen of the Borrd
Prof. Mary Cikungu

Director Generel

i)

tfl,ra,Aa
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OFF ICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERA L
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 20'15. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the National Museums of Kenya
set out on pages '1 to 34 which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net

Rclrot'l o/ the .ludilor-(it,nt'rul on .\'tttionul .lluscunl; rl Ken.tu litr the )vur endetl l0 June. 2021



o
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of the National Museums of Kenya as at 30 June, 2023, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with
the Public Finance Management Ac|2O12 and the National Museums and Heritage Act,
2006.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Unsupported and Undisclosed Property, Plant and Equipment

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.3,886,285,106 as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial
statements. lncluded in the balance is land with net book value of Kshs.1,575,127,445
which has not been valued since 1990.The National Museums of Kenya has one hundred
and fifty (150) parcels of land spread across the Country, out of which only forty-three
(43) parcels had title deeds and the remaining 107 parcels have no ownership
documents.

Further, property, plant and equipment net book value of Kshs.3,886,285,106 includes
heritage assets whose value could not be verified due to lack of fixed assets register. The
Museums has not disclosed the heritage assets that have future economic benefits or
service potential other than their current heritage value, and those heritage assets whose
future economic benefit or service potential is limited to their heritage characteristics.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and ownership of property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.3,886,285,106 as at 30 June, 2023 could not be confirmed.

2. Variance Between Financial Statement Amounts and Supporting Schedules

The statement of financial performance reflects amounts that differed with the supporting
schedules as detailed below:

Description

Financial
Statement

(Kshs.)

Supporting
Schedule

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Other lncomes 295,953,197 296,O17,387 (o4,190)
Transfers from Government -
Recurrent

1,106,790,000 1j07,617,040 (827,0/,0)

Proiect lncome 452,917,988 452,917,988
Repairs/Maintenance 28,86s,813 19,111,172 9,754,641

Report of the Auditor-Generql on National Museums of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Description

Financial
Statement

(Kshs.)

Supporting
Schedule

(Ks hs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Remuneration Directors '15,864,680 15,871 ,680 7,000
General Expenses 629,073,897 416,554,821 212,519,076

No reconciliation has been provided by Management

ln the circumstances, lhe accuracy and completeness of the financial statements could
not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Staff Costs

As disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements, the statement of financial performance
reflects employees' costs amount of Kshs.1 ,240,418,116. The amount includes
expenditure on salaries amounting to Kshs.972,803,798 and gratuity and pension of
Kshs.142,265,356 all totaling Kshs.1,115,069,154 which was processed through a payroll
controlled by the vendor. Management had no access to due to a system error. Further,
the amount includes payments of Kshs.4,870,763 made to casuals through imprest
issued to staff that were not supported by casual employee payroll or expenditure returns.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of employee cost of
Kshs.1,240,4'18,116 could not be confirmed.

4. Long Outstanding Trade Receivables - Rent Debtors

The statement of financial position reflects trade receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.10,995,940 which, as disclosed in Note 12a to the financial statements
includes in the reported balance are debts owed by tenants to museums buildings
amounting to Kshs.8,877,341 which have been outstanding for more than three (3) years
as per the aging analysis and efforts to recover the debts have not been successful.

ln the circumstances, the recoverability of the debts is in doubt

5. lnaccuracies in Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.299,447,752 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. However, review
of the bank reconciliation statements for the month of June, 2023 for eight bank accounts
revealed that the cash book balances differed with the financial statement balances as
detailed below:

Re port ol thc .l rditor-( ienerol on \ otional .\ Iuscuns o/ Ke n.vu lirr the .r,eur cntlcd 30 -lune. 2 02 J
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Excel

Reconciled cash
Book Balance

(Kshs.)

Amounts as per
Financial Statement

(Note 'l l )
(Kshs.)

Variance
(Kshs.)

Fort Jesus Proiect 1,287,762 16,646,017 (15,358,255)
Fort Jesus 6,2't0.40 4,286,751 (4,280,541)
Development Hqs 1,760,956 2,047,826 (286,870)
Narok 343,539 61,301 282,238
IPR-Predict 23,114,718 74,822,467 ( '1.707 ,749\
Natural Products 135,'193,494 106,843,312 28,350,182
Salaries 2,704,155 9,704,156 (7,000,001)
Dollar Hqs (3,135,357.75) 699,362 G,834.720\

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.299,447 ,752 as at 30 June, 2023 could not be confirmed.

6. Unsupported Staff Debtors

The stalement of financial position reflects receivables from non exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.287,406,460 in respect of staff debtors and as disclosed in Note 12b to
the financial statements. However, the supporting schedule reflects an amount of
Kshs.21,386,297 resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.266,020,163.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from non-exchange
transactions balance of Kshs.287,406,460 could not be confirmed.

7. Unsupported Accumulated Surplus

The statement of financial position reflects a debit accumulated surplus balance of
Kshs.95,807,085. However, the balance has been changed from the prior year balance
of Kshs.414,131,697 resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.509,938,782.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the debit accumulated surplus
balance of Kshs.95,807,085 could not be confirmed.

8. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Cash Flows

The slatement of financial position reflects opening bank balance of Kshs.543,842,736
whereas the statement of cash flow reflects Kshs.428,996,406 resulting to an
unreconciled balance of Kshs.1 14,846,330. Further, the statement of financial position
items with a cash inflow or outflow changes have also not been reflected in the statement
of cash flows.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the statement of cash flows
could not be confirmed.

Report ofthe .luditor-Generql on .\'ational .ltuseums of Kenl'a lor the year endeel 30 June, 2023
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The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the National Museums of Kenya Management
in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Emphasis of Mafter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects budgeted receipts of
Kshs. 1 ,665,523,833 against actual receipts of Kshs.2,1 '14,395,01 8 resulting in an under-
funding of Kshs.448,871 ,1 85 or 127o/o of the budget. Similarly, the Museums actual
expenditure of Kshs.1,995,890,632 against approved budget of Kshs.1,7'18,743,833
resulting in over-expenditure of Kshs.277,146,7 99 or 1160/o of the approved budget.
However, Management did not provide approval for the over-expenditure by the Board of
Directors.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Pending and Active Court Cases

The former Director General and four others including three employees of the National
Museums and a private individual have been arraigned before the Anti-Corruption Court
following investigations relating to employees' costs processed through the payroll
between the year 2016 and 2022.

The Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission has two cases that are active relating to the
National Museums of Kenya.

i. Case No. HCACECS|E027|2023 of 02 October, 2023 (EACC Vs 4 Others on
misappropriation of Kshs.468, 390,241 : and

Case No. MCAC/E01 1/2024 filed on 1 6 August, 2024 (Republic Vs 8 Others)

However, Management has not recognised or made any provision by way of contingent
liability to cushion the Corporation in the event the staff win and lay a counter-claim
against the Museum.

Repo tl thc Auditor-Generdl on Ndtiond ltluseuns of Kcma.for the.teur c'nded 30 Juna, 1023
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2. Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the previous audit report, several issues were raised under the Report on Financial
Statements and Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources.
However, the Management has not resolved most of the issues or given any explanation
for delay to resolve the issues.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Unauthorized Bank Overdraft

The statement of financial position reflects a bank overdraft of Kshs.9,733,781 as
disclosed at Note 16 to the financial statements. However, there was no Board
authorization to overdraw the account contrary to Section 28(4) and (5) of the Public
Finance Management Ac| 2012 which states that an Accounting Officer for a national
government entity shall not cause a bank account of the entity to be overdrawn beyond
the limit authorized by The National Treasury or a Board of a national government entity,
if any.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Cash Procurements Using lmprests

The statement of financial performance reflects general expenses amount of
Kshs.629,073,897 out of which Kshs.3,534,286 incurred on cash procurement of
services were over and above the threshold matrix for low value procurements as
required by Regulation 92(a) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Regulations, 2020.

Further, the amount includes Kshs.242,449,032 incuned on transport and travel costs out
of which imprest of Kshs.2,332,480 issued to the Natural Product lndustry Project
accountants during the month of June, 2023 was inadequately supported. Further, it was
noted that officers were holding more than one imprest.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

Report oflhe Audilor-Cenerql on Nalional Museums of Kenyu.for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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3. lrregular Transfer of Funds from Salary Account

The statement of financial performance reflects employees'costs of Kshs.1 ,240,418,116.
It was noted that the Management transferred Kshs.93,469,394 from the salaries account
to the other accounts contrary to Regulation 4B(1) of the Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations , 2015 which states that for purposes of section 43(3)
of the Act, Accounting Officers, may authorize reallocation of funds within programmes or
sub-votes provided that the reallocation does not affect the voted provisions from wage
to non-wage expenditure or from capital to recurrent expenditure.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Status of lmplementation of Projects

4.1 Delay in Completion of Gate and Renovation of Administration Block at Gede

The contract for the construction of gate and renovation of administration block at Gede
was awarded to a local contractor at a contract sum of Kshs.33,309,622 on 24 August,
2022. fhe completion date was February, 2023 which was later revised to June, 2023.
Site visit in the month of March, 2024 revealed that the pro.ject had stalled and the
contractor was not on site.

ln the circumstances, value for money may not be realized from the expenditure of
Kshs.9,200,000 so far incurred on the project.

4.2 Development of Tourist Visitor Safety Facilities

A contract for the construction of tourism safety facilities at world war one heritage
monument at Maktau was awarded at a contract sum of Kshs.68,497 ,794 on 13 June,
2022. Site visit to the pro.ject in in the month of March, 2024 revealed that the contractor
was not on site but research activities which were part of the contract were still on-going
AS;

Research, collection, documentation and restoration of World War One Heritage
Monument.

Collection of artefacts, exhibition development, design and installation of World
War One Heritage exhibition with audio-visuals and educational programmes.

Development of marketing and promotional materials of World War One Heritage
Monument.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and value for money may not be realized from the
expenditure of Kshs.53,238,504 already incurred on the project.

Report ol thc .lwlitor-Ocnerul on .\'utional .lh;se,:'ns ol Kenut litr the yeo'andcd l June. 2(l2l
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4.3 Poor Workmanship at Vasco Da Gama Pillar

Management awarded a contract for the construction of sea wall and concrete repair
works at Vasco Da Gama Pillar at contract sum of Kshs.59,349,235 being phase 1 which
had been fully paid as at 30 June, 2023. Site visit in March, 2024 revealed that there
was no access for vehicles to the pillar but a narrow walk way. Further, the sea wall had
collapsed a sign of poor workmanship making the place not safe for visitors. ln addition,
there seem to be no ownership documents for the area which has signs of encroachment.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and value for money may not be realized from the
expenditure incurred on the Project.

4.4 Delay in Completion of Njuri Ncheke Shrine

Management awarded a contract for the construction of Njuri Ncheke Shrine in Meru town
(Tender No. NMK/T/NNS|19|2O2O of 05 June, 2O20) al a contract sum of
Kshs.58,976,000 on 05 June, 2020 for a period of 48 weeks ending on 04 June,2021.
During the year under review, an amount of Kshs.39,560,475 or 67% of the contract sum
had been paid to the contractor. However, physical verification in the month of
March,2024 revealed that the project has stalled and the site abandoned. No explanalion
was given for the delay in the completion of the Project.

ln the circumstances, value for money may not be realized from the expenditure of
Kshs.39,560,475 incurred on the project.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance sections of my
report, based on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of a Staff Tokens Policy

A memo daled 22 November, 2022lo the Acting Director General from the Coordinator,
Natural Product lndustry NPI Flagship Project; States, a token of appreciation for

Reporl of lhe Audilor-General on National lvluseuus of Kenya lor lhe year ended 30 June, 202 3
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I

contributing to the successful implementation of various project activities of the (NPl)
Programme during the 2022-2023 financial year. However, payments of Kshs.1,279,000
were made to eighty two (82) staff (ranging from Kshs.5,000 and Kshs.'100,000 during
the year under review without the existence of approved staff token policy. Further, the
amounts paid were not included in the approved budget and Management did not indicate
the procedure applied or followed in payment of the staff tokens to staff members.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on Natural Product lndustry
Project procedures could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparalion and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Museum's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services, and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Museum or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions, and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors
process, reviewing the
relevant legislative and
systems are in place to
and risk management,
environment.

is responsible for overseeing the Museum's financial reporting
effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control

Repo ofhe Audilor-General on National ,\luseums o/ Ken1,q for the)earended 30June,2023
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

Repo of he ,luditor-General on.\'ational ltuseums of Ken1,a lor theyear ended l0June,2023
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Museum's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Museum to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Museum to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA an a BS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

21 June,2024

v

I
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NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

20224A23 ?011-20t?Note
IGhs Kshs

Revenuc From Non-Exchanqe Transactions
Transfers from govemments
Recurrent 3 (a) l. 106.790-000 1.384-010-00c
Sports, Arts & Social Development
Fund

3 (a)
4,386,1I I 244,696,s54

J'ourism Promotion Fund
3

124.789.4t4
l7G) 1.246.018 5.986.1l2Development

351.05 8.455Proiect Income 4 452.9t7.988
Total Revenue from non-exchange
transactions , 1,565,340,I l7 2,110,540,53s
Revenue from Exchange Transact

Other Incomes 5 295,953,197 202,198,89C

Total revenue from exchange transaction
295,953,197 202,198,890

Total Revcnue 1,861.293,3I4 2,312,739.425
Expenses

6 1.240.418.t l6 1.325.4u.217Employee costs
7 42.877.893 43.820.s08Depreciation
8 28.865.813 3 I.843.103Repairs and maintenance

15.864.680 9.367.s79Remuneration of directors 9

General expenses l0 629.073,89't 488.165.26 r

Total Expenses 1,957,r00,399 1,898,607,728

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Period (9s,807,08s) 414,131,691

l2.Stotemenl of Finonciol Performonce for lhe eor ended 30 June 2023

The notes set out on pages 7 to 33 fomr an integral part ofthese Financial Statements. The Financial

,. Statements set out on pages I to 4 were signed on behalfofthe Board of Directors by:

(

Name: Prof. Mary Gikungu

Director General

Name: Geoffrey Namachanja

Financial Controller

ICPAK M/No: 7763

Name: Edwin Aboriyo

Chairman of the Board

sl+lAory Da&J;lot\Date

I

Date O 4,rlzf



NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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I 3. Slolemenl of Finonciol Posilion os ol 30 June 2023

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 4 were signed on behalfofthe Board of Directors
by:

lrtDrila*-
Name: Prof. Mary Gikungu

Director General

Date

Name: Geo ey Namachanja

Financial Controller

ICPAK MNO.: 7763

Name: Edwin Abonyo

Chairman of the Board

Datetl+lzozr+ D^kElf bo2-P "44,"1

2

I i: ll,\1 ll..rrrl i Ilf lr'r.l;$Pli:'.,,tiii},':tlillhclFiil ii.r i _. i, 'jr tM.ili}fiffii,,'r' ',fillJr{t\u ,,'..
Acscfs KShs KShs
Crrrront Aaaeta
Cash and cash equivalents lt 299,447 ,7 52 543.842.736
Receivables from exchanse transactions t2ia\ 10.995.940 16.336.843
Receivables from non- exchange
lransactions

l2(b)
287.406.460 30r,r32,796

lnvent6riea t1 '158 174 RR4 000
Iotal Current Assets s98,618,286 862,196,37s
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 3.886.285. r06 3.800.925.071

fotal Assets 4,484,903,392 4,663,121,446
Liahilities
Crrrrenf I.iehililies
fuade and other payables from exchange I5 412,988,t24 394,526,698
Bank Overdraft l6 9,733,781 l14.846.33C
Total Current Liabilities 422,721,905 509,373,028
Non-crrrrenf Liehilities
Deferred Development Grant l7 250,119,482 283,366,480
Proiect F)enosits l8 156.269.691 203.71 1 .241
Total non-current Liabilities 406,389.173 487 ,071,721
Tnfql l.irhilitier 829.t t l -07fl ss6.4\o-745
Nef Assefs :l-655-792-314 3 -6(t(t -(t7 O-(r91
Reserves i 751 sSq ?qq 'l ?5? 51S 00t
Accrrrnrrlated srrrnlrrs rgs 80? 0R 5) 414 171 69'1

Total Net Assets And Liabilities 3.6ss.7923r4 3.666,670,691
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l4.Slotemenl of Chonges in Nel Assels for lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023

n Capital
ReserYe

-E Ai;
Rogcrvgs

Rcvrluatlon
Rs$rvc

Totd Kihs.

! B4!4.qc-e.4s_at lst July 2021 3,530,492,122 (421,723,823) 14,635,150
Capital ized gove.-.nt g.an1

llt\
Total comprehensiue income tor

th9-yqar
Prior Year adjustments 

'

r3 r,385,55 t

(2,250,000)
3,659,627,,673

4t4,t3t,697

(7,592,126)

(7,s92,126)

3,123,403,,449

r 3 r,38s,5s l

414,t3t,697
(2,250,000)

t4,635,150 3,666,670,697

14,635,150 3,6661670,697

_ _:- __ 84923,792

- (95,807,08s)

Balqqce as a! \_t luly 2Q??
Capitalized government grant
(l7b)

Balance as at 30lh June 2022

comprehensive income for
at

Prior Year adjustments

Balance as at 30th June 2023

3,659,,627,673

84,923J02-

(95,807,085)

3,,744,,556375 (r03,399,211) 14,635,150 3,65s,7g23r4

3



NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA
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for the year ended June 30,2023.

l5.Slotemenl of Cosh Flows for lhe eor ended 30 June 2023

ir r',

't'ds$,

t" ,hi[
I;

fi
1: Idbi+q: I$lir.' 

-'

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Transfers from other govemments entities 3(a) I,198,I 76,95 I t,676,495,128
Project income 4 452,9 t7,988 351,058,455

Other income 5(a) 30 I ,294, 100 202,541,M2
Total receipts 1,952,389,039 2,230,095,025
Payments

Employee costs 6(a) l,3l I,051,095 1,383,085,658
Repairs and maintenance 8 28,86s,813 3 I ,843,103
Board expenses 9 15,864,680 9,367,579
General expenses l0(a) 613, 138, 130 505,340,877

Total payments r,968,9 r 9,718 t,,929,637,217

Net cash florvs from operating activities 22 (16,s30,679) 300,457,808

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment t4 (t28,237,928) ( 162,058,008)

Net cash flows from investing activities (128,237,928) (16r,0s8,008)

Cash flows from financing activities
Development grant from GOK t7 52,927,722 120,609,74',1

Project dcposits (4',7,44t,ss0) 80,479,628
Net cash flows from financing Activities s,486,172 201,089,37s

Net increase/(decrease) in cash &
Cash equivalents

(139,282,43s) 340,489,175

Caslr and cash equivalents at I J:lJry 2022 428,996,406 88,507,231

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2023 ll 289,713,,971 428,996,406

4
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Descripfion Olfulnal;-:
buds&:

Adiustnerts Final buitget Acqnlm
comparable
bssfo

Prfounance
dffierence

o/o of
utilization

Kshs. Kshs.Kshs. Kshs. Kshs.
c:(a+b) d g=1c_d) F=d/c* | 00A B

Revenue
Transfers from Other
Govemments entities
Recurrent Grant 100v"1,t60,010,000 (s3,220,000) r ,106,790,000 I ,106,790,000
Development Grant 35,000,000 ( r 6.476.400) r 8,523,600 r 8,523,600 100o/o

Sports Fund 3 8.790,233 38,790,233
Other Recurrent 224,000,000 (22,580,000) 201,420,000 201,420,000 10001,

Other incomes:
Intemaliv Revenue 300,000,000 300,000,000 295,953,19',7 4,046,803 98.65%

Project Revenue 452,9t7,988 (4s2,9 r 7,988) 100%

Total income I,719,010,000 1,665,523,833 2,114.395.018
Expenses
Employees Costs t.2t |,732,77 6 |,2|r..232,7',76 I,240.4 l 8.l I6 (29.185.340) I05.lYo
Depreciation d{ (71 11,) 45,573,332 42,877,893 2,69s,439 94.10/^

Repairs &Maintenance 85,742,724 85,742,725 28,865,8 ll 56,876,912 33.7%
Remuneration to Board of
Directors l8,l 67,9 l4 9t1,427 r9,08s,34 l 15,864,680 3,220,661 84.0%

General Expenses 323,293,254 (23,497,428) 299,795,826 629,073,897 (329,278,0'71) 209.8v,
Development Expenses
(GOK) 35,000,000 (t6,476,400) 18,523,600 18,523,600 09o

Sports Fund Expenses 38,790,233 3 8,790,2 33 100%
Total expenditure 1,719,010,000 1,718,743,833 1,995,890,632
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the
period (s3.220.000) 118,504,386

l6.Stotemenl of Com orison of Bud et ond Actuol omounls for lhe eor ended 30 June 2023.

I. The financial statements reflect material difference between the budget and actual amounts.

5
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NA'r'TONAL lvlUSUUlvN Or,' KEI{YA -----

or t ye.r ended June 30,2023.e

The intemal rcvenue target as approved in the revised budget estimates was not surpassed due to less numbers of visitors that gradually

decreased during the year.

Repair and maintenance decreased due to less activities as a result ofdecrease in intemal revenue

In relation to Board Expenses, overall, they were within budgetary allocation. The savings on budgetary allocation was as a result of fewer

meetings held dwing the year.

The general expenses exceeded the ceiling due to project / donor funded activities carried out during the year.

2, Changes from original budget are a consequence of govemment variations through normal budgetary process for both recurrent and

development grans. Subsequently, a number ofother factors that affect our intemal revenue generation also results to alterations in budget

to enable the organization to continue with its operations with minimal intemrptions.

6



NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA
Annual Report and Financial Sta(ements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

I 7. Notes lo the Finonciol Slolemenls

l. General Information

National Museums of Kenya is established by and derives its authority and accountability from

National Museums and Heritage Act. The entity wholly owned by the Govemment of Kenya

and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is establishment of National

Museums and the idcntification, protection, conservation and transmission ofthe cultural and

natural heritage of Kenya

2. Statement ofCompliance and Basis ofPreparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement

at re-valued amounts of certain iterns of property, plant and equipment, financial instruments at

fair value and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation offinancial

statements in conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows

the use of estimates and assumptions. [t also requires management to exercise judgement in the

proccss of applying the Organization's accouriting policies. The areas.involving a higher degree

ofjudgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of the National Museums of Kenya . The cash flow statement is

prepared using direct method.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State

Corporations Act and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting

policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the yea$ presented.

7



NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

i. New and amended standards and interpretalions in issue elfective in the year ended 30

June 2023.

..tr +

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4lz Applicable: I'r January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the

financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relevant ald useful inforrnation to users of financial

statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's fllture cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model

for financial assets that considers the characteristics of

the asset's cash flows and the objective for which the

asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments

subject to impairment testing; and

Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong link between an

Entity's risk management strategies and the accounting

treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l" January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, laithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

8



NATIONAI, MUSEUMS OF KENYA
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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Stendard Effecuve date and lmpact:

repoding Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update tlie guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples

on hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) A.rnendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financiaI guaranteed contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifying financial instruments on initial adoption of

accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Other

improvements

IPSAS

to

Applicable I't January 2023

r IPSIS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the

General Govemment Sector. Amendments to refer to the latest

System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

. IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. Slandard no longer included in the 2023

IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which

is applicable from l't January 2023.

9
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u New and ontended slandards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in lhe

year ended 30 June 2023.

iii. Early adoplion of standards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year 202212023

IPSAS 43 Applicoble l"t January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure lhat

Iessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Cunent

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable 1"' January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.

t0
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Reven ue recognition

Transfers from government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govcmmcnt entities arc measured at fair

value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the

transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be nreasured reliably.

Government Grants

i. Recurrent govemment grant credited to the Statement of Financial Performance based on

the payment made by the government of Kenya.

ii. Development grant is credited to the Staten€nt of Financial Performance based on the

amount spent. The unspent an'rount is deferred until spent.

Project income

Thcse are funds earmarked for specific projects mostly dealing with Research in particular areas.

Thc projects funds are credited to a deposit Account when received and only transfer the amount

spent each month to income. In this case, income and expenditure are always the same. The balance

remains in the respective deposit account.

a) Taxation

The National Museums of Kenya adheres to taxation laws through timely filing of its tax

obligations. VAT and excise duty are exempted on case by case-on application to the National

Treasury and Kenya Revenue Authority.

b) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The enlity rccognizes revenue from rendering of services to the public through gate

admissions.

Sale of goods

Revenue from thc sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

ll
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Interest income

Interest income ts accrued using the negotiated rate.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investlnent properties is accounted for upon

realization.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The

assets are not depreciated in the year of purchase. Depreciation is calculated on the reducing

balance basis to write down the cost ofeach asset to its residual value over its estimated useful

life using the following rates:

. Motor Vehicles 25%

. Equipment and furniture 12.5%

. Computers 25%

. Buildings l%

d) Exhibits and Collections
As a policy, no value has been placed on exhibits, study collection and fixtures. Museum

Exhibits have no commercial value, and the study collection is priceless.

e) Purchase of Animals

Purchase of primates is expensed in the financial performance statement at the time of
purchase.

f) Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial lnstruments: Recognition and

Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit and

receivables, held+o-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.

The organization determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) arc recognized

on the trade date, i.e., the date that the organization commits to purchase or sell the asset.

t2
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The National Museums of Kenya financial assets include cash and short-term deposits; trade

and other receivables.

Derecognition

The organization derecognizes a financial asset or, whcrc applicable, a part ofa financial asset

or part of a group of similar financial assets when; The rights to receive cash flows from the

asset have expired or is waived, the organization has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset ol has assumed an obligation to pay thc received cash flows in full without

material delay to a third party; and either: (a) thc organization has transfened substantially all

the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) the organization has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of tlre asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair

value through surplus or deficit as appropriate. The National Museums of Kenya determines

the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case ofborrowings, plus

directly attributable transaction costs.

The organization's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts,

fi nancial guarantee contracts.

g) Employee Benefits

(i) Short Term

NMK has employees who can'ies out day-to-day operations and are entitled to salaries and

allowance. The organization recognises these salaries and allowances as expenses, which are

charged to financial performance statement.

(ii) Retirement Benefits

NMK operates a defined contribution staff Retirement Benefit Scheme for its employees. The

Scheme is administered by Insurance Company of East Africa and is funded by contribution

from both NMK and the employees. lt also pays gatuity to staff on contract. NMK'S

contribution is charged to the financial performance statement in the year to which they relate.

NMK also contributes to a statutory defined scheme; the National Social Security Fund (NSSF)

l3
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contributions are determined by local starute and are cumently vary according to basic salary

per employee per month.

h) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(a) Capital Reserve

The organization creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. National

Museums of Kenya has capital reserves and revaluation reserves. Reserves are monies

budgeted, collected and set aside for replaccment or deferred maintenance to the capital

improvements. Boards establish reserve accollnts for the futr-rre replacement or deferred

maintenance of the common areas.

Reserve funds enable the organization to maintain the common areas with a reduced risk of

special assessments and minimize the impact offinancial challenges. The fund establishes and

preserves rescrves for a strong financial position to mect futurc expenditures and reduce the

potential for reduction in property values.

(b) Revenue Reserve

A reserve, which is created out of the revenue profit, is called revenue reserve. Revenue profit

is earned in the normal course of the business. Revenue reserve refers to the undistributed

revenue profit. It is created for strengthening the financial position, replacing depreciable

assets, redeeming liabilities and conducting research and development fuuctions.

(c) RevaluationReserve

A revaluation reserve is an increase in the value of fixed assets. Asset revaluation reserve is

an accounting concept and represents a reassessment of the value of a capital asset as at a

particular date. The reserve is considered a category of the equity of the entity. An asset is

originally recorded in the accounts at its cost and depreciated periodically over its estimated

useful life as a measure ofthe amount ofthe assets value consumed in that period. ln practice,

the actual useful life of an asset can be miscalculated or an event can cause a change to the

useful life. Consequently, assets occasionally need to be revalued in order to reflect a closer

approximation to thcir "worth" in the accounts. When the asset is revalued, tl,e offsetting entry

(in a double entry accounting system) would be made either to the profit or loss accounts or to

the equity ofthe entity.
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i) Branches

Thc regional stations reporls are incorporated in these financial statements

j) Translation of Foreign Currency

Translations in foreign currencies during the year arc converted into Kenya Shillings at ratcs

ruling at the transaction dates. Assets and liabilities, which are expressed in foreign currency,

are translated into "Kenya Shillings" at rates ruling at the date in the fiuancial position

statement. The resulting difference from the conversion and translation are dealt with in the

financial performance statcment in year, which they arise.

k) Research and Development

Research and Development expenses are expensed through Financial Performance statement

in the year are incurred.

l) Budget Information

The annual budget for the period 202212023 was prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all

planned costs and income are presented in a single statement to determine the needs of the

entity. As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for budgeting puryoses, there are no

basis, timing or entity differences that would require reconciliation between the actual

comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional financial statelnent in

the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

m) Related Parties

The National Museums of Kenya regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability

to exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the

organization, or vice versa. Members ofkey Management are regarded as related parties and

comprise the Directors Executive Team.

n) Comparative Figures

Where necessary conrparative figures for the previous financial year have been anrended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in prescntation.

q) Provisions

l5
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Provisions are recognized when the organization has a present obligation (legal or

constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance

net of any reimbursenrent.

r) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents corlprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end

of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents

also include short-term cash imprests and advances to authorised officers, which were not

surrendered or accounted lor at the end ofthe financial year.

s) Inventories

Inventory is measured at the lower ofcost and net realizable value

t) Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabitities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the

end ofthe reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a matefial adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

Thc kcy assumptions conccrning the fi-rture and other key sources of cstimation uncertainty

at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the

consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and

l6
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assurnptions about future developnrents may change due to market changes or circunrstances

arising beyond the control ofthe Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.

Useful Lives and Residual Values

Tlre useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to
infonn potential future use and value from disposal:

Il.

ll I.

iv.

The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Entity

The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

The nature of the processes in which the asset is deploycd

Availability of funding to replacc thc asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

u) Subsequent Events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on

the financial statements for the year ended Juue 30, 2023.

3. Transfers from Other Government entities

Desorlptlon tt 7-1023 -2071-?022

KShs KShs
Unconditional gants
Operational Grant -Recurrent 1.106,790,000 I,384,010.000

-Devclopmetrt r8,523,600 r 9, r 00,000
Sports, Arts & Social Development Fund

- Recurrent 4,386,1I r 244,696,554
- Development 34,404,122 tol,509,74't

Tourism Fund 124.789.414

Total h.. ,'.' ,' ..'l;164.103.833 "'"'1.874.105.713

The operational recurrent grant is to cater for employee costs while the development grant is for

capital projects.

3 (a) Transfers from Other Government entities

Desqrlption 2022-2023 2071-2022
KShs KShs

Opcrational Grant -Recurrent l.106.790.000 l,384.010.000
Add: prior year grant receivable 87,000.840 r0,000,000

Lcss: receivable for thc year (87,000,840)0
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Sports, Arts & Social Development Fund

- Recurrent 4,386,1 l l 244,696,554
Tourism Fund 0 124,'189,4t4

Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

Ministry of

Wildlife, Tourism

and Heritage

I,106,790,000 I,106,790,000 I,384,0r 0,000

VIinistry of

Wildlife, Tourism

1nd 
Heritage

l 8,523,600 18,523,600 19,100,000

dinistry of Youth,

iports and The

lrrts

4,386,t I I 4,386, r l r 244,696,554

,Iinistry of Youth,

ports and The

Lrts

34,404,122 34,404,t22 t01,509,747

linistry of

/ildlife, Tourism

Id Heritage

124,789,4t4

d

inistry of

ildlife, Tourism

d Heritage

201,420,000 20t,420,000 124,000,000

l[tar
1,312,596,11l 18,523,600 34,404,122 1,365,523,833 I,998,105,715
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4

5

Project Income

Other Incomes

Detrils

20la-2023
KShs KShi

Projcct lncome HQ 293,456,500 243,681,1t4

Project Admin Income 6,181 ,540
Proiect income IPR 159,461,488 100,989,801

Total 452,917,988 351,058,4ss

Admission fee 224,505,411 142,890,334

Rental income 20.363.606 t6,982,201

Sale ofpublication and artefacts
I 5,844,2 l0 6,594,053

Sale of soft drinks 493.026 402.3 l0
Sale of casts 10.029.2t2 5,662,404
Sundry income 24,717 ,732 29,667,582

Total 295,953,197 202,198,890
s (a)

6 Employee Costs

6(a)

Total pther incomes 295,9s3,197 202, r98,890

Add: prior year trade receivables 16.336.843 tt,474,523
Less: trade receivables for the year ( r0.995.940) ( l r,l3 l,97l )
Total

301,294,100 202,,341,442

Salaries 972.803.798 1,050,678,625

Gratuity and pensions I 42 2_65.156 t86,619,990

Medical 5l-l8t-024 54,593,05'1

Training 6t'7 ?.56 426 30,445,323

Staff welfare and uniforms 4 9t 1.517 3,074,282

Total
1,240,418,1l6 1,325,4r1,277

Total Employee costs r .240.41 8. r I 6 1,325,4n,2',77

[,ess: prior year staff debtors (2 t4 131956) (2l,6r0,060)
Add: staffdebtors for the year 297 .406.460 2t4,t3t,956
Add: Third pany payment prior year 57 -376-262 19,224,916

Less: Third party payment for thc year ( 57 8'7 I .401\ (s7,376,262)

Add: Other payables prior year t72.750.433 76,054,264

L€ss: Other payables for the year fi74 896 8t 7) (172,7s0,433)

Total l,3l1,051,095 r,383,085,658
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7 Deprcciation

8 Repair and Maintenance

Board of Directors Expenses

General Expenses

9

0

PPE (note l4) 42,877,893 43,820,508
Total 42,877,893 43,820,508

Vehicle expenses- Maintenance/spares 10,3 15, I l6 7,t68,926

ment re irs and maintenance 5,084,293 3,135,546

Maintenance of buildin 7,939,137 15,711,203

Maintenance of monuments s,492,767 s,683,828

Cage maintenance 34,500 143,60C

Total 28,865,813 31,843,103

Lunch 4l 2,000 ??o onn
Phone exnenses '74,000 i5 000
Insurance /Medical I .317.225 3,368,381
Sittins allowance 5,440,000 1 040 onn
Accommodatior/Per diem 4,167,800 I,001 ,000
Airfare fare 67 95) l3l,005
Car Hire I 40.480
Board meeting expenses r 016 soR 306,694
Mileage 2298715 695.499
Honoraria for Chairman 970 000 560.000

Total 1s,8s4,680 9,367,s79

I:',i'lr:"';:-'-:r - -

Administrative costs 403tI40R 23,88s,649
Transport and travel )4). 449 01) 163,569.648
Contracted professional Services 99.83 8.842 35.666.25C
office and other expenses t42,141,561 139,783,60 I

Advertising and publicity 9.968.698 5,261 .5 r 0

Telephone and postage I I .350.408 19,61 3,88 l
Electrici and water 76 047 965 19,130,119
Purchases and other direct in uts s6,925,983 81,254,597
Total 629,073,897 488,165,261
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l0(a)

ll. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Total General expenses os o'71 Rq'l 488,1 65,261
Less: prior year inventory (8tt4.000) (878,8821

Add: Inventorv for the vear 768. 134 884.00C

Add: prior vear Trade payables r61,062,003 180,232,501

Less: trade oayables for the year fl 78 88 r 904) 0 63.062.0031
Total 6t.1-l _18- 130 s05,340,877

202?.20!i 2i7l-2$22
Current accounts 299.416.902 543,829;t3C
Others (cash at hand) 10.850 r3,00c
Sub Total 299-4d1_7\2 \A1 *t2 716

Bank Overdraft (note l6) (9.733.78 r ) (l14.846.330)
Total cash and cash equivalents t89,713,971 428,996,406

e sis oI an u vt a07l,4023 20lr-t0rl
Flnanclal Insfltution Attount Numbtr Ifthg 3

a) Current Account
Nairobi Museum, HQs, SCB 0108035107801 240,855 172,882
Recurrent HQs, SCB 0108035107900
Development HQs, KCB rt06829379 2,047,826 3,449,8t9
Salaries 01080-337464-00 9,704,156 4,791,436

Commercial HQs 01080-354365-00 3 23,603 4,126,7'75
Fund A,/C 01080-345937-00 I.800.239 I,714,7 55

Project HQs 01080-35 1078-00 526,26t t5,225,3t7
Lodwar rt07592267 88,706 139,971
Karen Blixcn Savings 01s20-929447 -00 490,379 477,639
Dollar HQs (Kshs equivalent) 87080-351079-00 699,362 3,730, 158

Karen Blixcn Rccurrent 0 r 020-448886-00 272,279 312,682
Natural Products Industry HQs 01080-35 r079-01 106,843,312 2,137,575
SDons- Arts & Social
Devel<ipment Fund fuC lL04178343 512,029 20t,091,313
Natlonal Museums of Kenva -
NAGOK l l4l174387800 54,800 10,000
Recurrent IPR 01020-447000-01 I1,297 ,004 27.579.491
Dollar IPR (Kshs equivalent) 87020-447000-00

0 102044700000
21,607,456 2t,n7.998

IPR Project A/C, I,t 15,425
CNHR Project A/C 01020-441000-02 3,092,425 5,723,513
IPR MMUST 0108044700000 3,44t,052 664,5s5
IPR Predict A./C 0 r02044700004 '74,822,467 44,500,001
IPR GCC, SCB Karen 0102044700001 6,700,630 4,085,468
Snake bite 0 108035 I 07802 28,228,809 53,300,285

Fort Jesus KCB Treasury r r 06548876 4,286,7 st 66,133
Fort Jesus Project I t06548809 16,646,0t1 19,939,617
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,'l?iffixlWi::' , ilila0tt

Gede Ruins- KCB Malindi I108000584 1,725 102,750
12,768 1 9,1 39[,amu KCB 1104778173

I,amu Projects I104778505 3.26t.595 2.787.705
Meru SCB 0102063108500 l2l,618
Kapenguria tt062t64'74 97,988 7l,813
Baringo | 103642324 2,015 5,369

0102055059500 l.023.588 9,062Kisumu
1t07720796 6t,30t t24.789.t35Narok

Nakuru Hyrax 0152054858500 958,158
Kitale 0102036056900 12,460 8,622

299.436.90r 543.829,736SuFTotal

BANKOVERDRAFT
ACCOTJNT
Recurrent HQs 0108035107900 9,733,781 3.s99.899
IPR Project, SCB Karen 01020-044700000 111.24s.626

80sMeru SCB 0102063 108s00

Total 9,733,78r 114,846J30

b) Others (cash in hend)

IPR s,100 200
12.800Olorgesaille 5,750

r0,850 13,000Sub-Total

fwrLmffiffirsfi
ffiIiilrlffillr,Ltrffi ffiI{tIfiTrffi f,

2 Receivables

(a) Receivables from Exchange Transactions
11,131,971Trade Receivables 9,025,445

463,t27 3,697,504Prepayments
l,507,368Deposits l,507,368

10,995,940 16J36,843Total

(b) Receivables from Non- Exchange Transactions

214,t3t,956Staff Debtors 287,406,460

87,000,840GOK Grant

Total 287.406,460 301,132,796
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13. Inventorler

"mffillimilff' rffi''1
Publications 431,160 5l1,738
Crats 278,574 338,709
Soft Drinks 58,404 33,553

Totrl lnvcntorles rt th€ lower of cort rnd net
rcelhrble velue 7&134 t84,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

COST/ VALUATION
As at lst July, 2021 | .57 5 ,t21 ,445 r. r83.085.58 t 895,346.950 350,30 r,3 r9 97 ,13 t,7 6l r62.268.035 4.263.861.09 t
Additions during the ycar

r 3l,385,552 16,338.483 6,44 t, r85 6,892,788 r 6l ,058,008
Completed works during the year

Adjustment during the year (2,250.000) (2,250.000)
As at 30th June 2022 | ,515,127 ,445 r.183.085.581 t.024.4E2.502 366,639,802 704,172,946 169.160,823 4,422,669 .099

DEPRECIATION

As at lst July 2021 173,340,936 208,648,750 7 7 ,634,1'15 I r8,299,059 5'11,923,520
Charge for the Year 10,097,446 t7,'106.57 t 5,024,241 10,992,244 43.820.508
As st 30th Jung2022 183,438J82 226,355,321 82.659,022 129,291,303 028621 7
COST/ VALUATION

As at lst July, 2022 | ,5'15.t2',1 .445 1,r 83.085.58 r |,024,482,502 366,639,802 104.t72,946 r 69, r60,823 4,422,669,099
Additions during thc year 84.928;102 r 3,184.865 30,124.36t 128,237,928
Completed works during the year

As 8t 30rh June 2023 1,575,127,445 I,t83,085,5E1 I,109,411,204 379,824,661 134.297 307 169,160,E23 21550 907
DEPRECTATION

As at lst July 2022 r83,438.382 226,355,32t 82,659,022 129,29t,303 621,144,028
Chargc for the Year 9,996,4'12 17,535,560 5,378,481 9,967,380 42,8',7'.7,893
As 8t 30th Juoe 2023 193,434,854 243.890,E81 8E,037.503 r39,258,683 664 62t,921
NET BOOK VALUE,S

As at 3oth June 2023 | ,57 5,127 .445 989,650,721 I,109,4ll,204 135.933.786 46.259.E04 29,902,140 88 r06
NET BOOK VALUES

As at 30th June, 2022 1,575.127.445 999,U7,t99 1,024,482,502 140,284,48r 21,513,924 39,869,520 3.800.925,071

atil
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15. Trade and other Payables from Exchange'fransactions

t6. Bank ovcrd ra ft

17. Defcrred Development Grant

Details 70211123 7i2t-2022
Kshs Kshs

National governrncnt 2s0.1t9,482 283,366,480
Total 250,119,482 283,366,480

Dcferred grant relates to income receivcd in advance whose services havc not yet been rendercd.

17(a)

Detaile ?022,t0tt 20?1.2022.
IGhs IGhs

Balance b/f 283,366,480 300,128,396
G.O.K development Crant rcceived during thc ycar \) a)1 1)) r20,609,74')
Transfer to Capital fund (84,928,702)

( r ,246,01 8)

(13r,385,551)

Transfer to Income statement (s,986,1l2)
Balance c/f 250,1t9,482 283,366,480

18. Projcct Deposits

Detalls 2022a023 202t-2022
Kshr IGbs

Opcnina balance 203,7I ,24t t23,231,6t3
Add reccipts during the ycar

Total Deposits
Less expenditurc (note 4)

40s.476.438 43 1,s38,083
609,187,679 554,769,696
452,91 7,988 3st 05 8,455

20i,111,241Balancc c/f t56,269,691

Projcct revenue is donor funds used for research activitics carried out by NMK scientists

1027-2023 2021-2012
Kshs IGtrs

Trade payables I 78,88 r,904 163,062,003
Payments received in advancc r.338,000 I,338,000
Third pany payrnents 57.871.403 57,376,262

Other payables 174,896,8t7 t72,750,433
Total 412,988,124 394,526,698

Details 2027-2423 2021-2022
IGhs Ks hr

Bank overdrafts 9,733,781
9,733,781

l 14,846,330
Total l r4,846,330
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost
If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts

would be as follows:

20. Trade and Other Pa ables

Refundable Deposits and Prepayments from Customers

T

Land | ,57 5,t27 ,445 I ,57 5 ,t2'7 ,445
t93,434,854 989,6sO,727Buildings I , r 83,08s,s81

Motor Vehicles, Including Motorcycles 169, 160,823 139,258,683 29,902,140

46,259,804Computers and Related Equiprnent t34,297,307 88,037,503

Oflice Equipment, Fumiture, And Fittings 379,824,667 243,890,881 135,933,786

664,621,921 2,776,873,902Total 3.,441,495,823

t ,1,'

Trade payables 178,881,904 163,062,003

Payments received in advance l,338,000 r,338,000

Third-party payments 57,871,403 57,376,262

174,896,817 172,150,433Other payables

394,526,698Total trade and other payables 412,988,124

Ageing analysis: (Trade and other payables) Current FY

oh oI
the

Total
Comparative

FY

V" oI
the

Total

Under one year 256,876,487 62.zYo 294,238,330 74.6%

I -2 years 10,275,068 2.s% 34,47 t,54t 8.7%

2-3 years r12,572,355 27.3% I 1,228.105 2.8%

Over 3 years 33,264,2t4 8.0% 54,588,722 13.9%

Total (tie to above total) 412,988,t24 394,526,698

ilffiIrilldl&ffi

F*offii '.ri.,, .r

i.i'1: / .t

': '"''tw,:lwt'"' :' - "'lrfrtrtt 2:'

I{ctrs, ,

Prepayments 463,t27 3,697,s04

Other deposits 1,507,368

1,970,495

1,507,368

Total dcposits s,204,872

I
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Ageing analysis: (Refundable deposits) Current FY

"h oI
the

Total
Comparative

FY
7o of the

Total

Ovcr 3 years t,9't0,495 100v. 5,204,812 l00o/o

'fotal 1,970.,495 5,204,872

22. Cash Generated from Operations

Financial Risk Management

The organizations activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity

risks, interest rate and the effects of changes in foreign currency rates. The National Museums of

Kenya's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability ofchanges in the operating

environment and seeks to minimise the potential advcrse effect ofsuch risks on its pcrformance by

setting acceptable levels ofrisk. The Entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are

detailed below:

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

i) Credit risk

The organization's credit risk is primarily attributable to its othcr receivables and bank balances.

The amounts of rcceivables presented in the statement of tinancial position, estimated by the

organization's management based on prior experience and their assessment ofthe current economic

environment.

The credit risk on receivables is limited because the organization does not rely on them. The credit

risk on liquid funds with financial institutions is also low, because the counter parties are banks with

high credit ratings.

)7

Deecrlption
!0!2n013 ,ottt?022

Krhi Ikbr
Surplus for the year before tax (9s,807,08s) 4t4,131,697

Adjusted for:
Depreciation 42,877,893 43,820,s08

Working capital adjustments (s2,929,t92) 457,952,205

Increase in inventory I15,866 (5, l l8)
Increase in receivables t9,067,239 (269,180,184)

lncrease in payables t8,461,426 |1 ,677.017

Development expenditure (l.246,0r8) (s,986,1 l2
Net cash flow from operating activities (16,s30,679) 300,457,808
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The amount that best represents the organization's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June

2023 is as follows:

The amount that best represents the Centre's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2022
is as follows:

Financial Risk Management

The organizations activities cxpose it to a variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity

risks, interest rate and the effects of changes in foreign currency rates. The National Museums of

Kenya's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability ofchanges in the operating

environment and secks to minimise the potential adverse effect ofsuch risks on its performancc by

setting acceptable levels of risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company's cash

balances.

At 30 June 2023, if the interest rates on the bank balances had decreased/increased by 5 percentage

points with all other variables held constant, the impact on surplus lor the year would have been

Kshs. 14,485,699 (2022: Sh. 21,449,820) higher/lowcr.

There has been no change to the company's exposure to interest rate or thc manner in which it
manages and measures thc risk.

The carrying amount offinancial assets rccorded in the financial statements representing the Entity's

maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is

made up as follows:

' Ftirl$ Ptirforihln[, i Paitbui: :'

.., ,' I :'t&iig, - l'1.: l , Ili," I&hs.-.-t

Bank Balances 289 713 971
r 0,995,940

289,7 t3,971
Trade Receivables r 0,995,940
Staff Debtors 287,406,460 287,406,460

tiiii'il 6SS.i:lbllil|. { " : - 5$C.1163tr

428.996,406Bank Balances 428,996,406
16,336,843Trade Receivables 16,336,843

214,t3t,9562t4,t31,956Staff Debtors
f6tir 619liti,ailS

ffiffii:filfrffiililtfl
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Descriptlon
Total

Amount
fully

prrformlng
Pact Due iupalred

l(shs. IGhr. Kshs. I(rlr.
As at 30th June 2023

Receivables from exchange

transactions
10,995,940 10,995,940

Receivables from non-exchange

transactions
287,406,460 287,406,460

Bank balances 289,7 t3,97 t 289,713,971

Total s88,1l6J7l 588,I16,371

As at 30 June 2022

Receivables from exchange

transactions
16,336,843 16,336,843

Receivables from non-exchange

transactions
30t,132,796 301,132,796

Bank balances 428,996,406 428,996,406

Total 746,466,045 746,466,045

Financial Risk Management

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading.

The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible

amounts that the Entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to cover

any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The board of directors sets the Entity's credit policies and

objectives and lays down parameters within which the various aspects ofcredit risk management are

operated.

ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Organization's directors, who

have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the

Organization's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The

Organization manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash

flows. The table below represeDts cash flows payable by the Entity under non-derivative financial

liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in

the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal their

carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant-

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the financiaI liabilities that affect liquidity:
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As at 30 June 2023

As at 30 June 2022

ps

Y
Le otal

A

Kshs. l :l , ;l{shsl

Total

hs.

Payablcs 64 I I 1,635

6

64,1I1,635
Payablcs

I

98,9s0,368

t-T$EEilr.

98,950,368

--iEI6z;doi.:_

an €arI
ea

iii) l\Iarket risk

The National Museums of Kenya (NMK) has put in placc an internal audrt function to assist it in

assessing thc risk laccd by the NMK on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the desrgn and

effectiveness of its internal accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from

changcs in market pfices, such ils intelest rate, r-'quity prices and foreign exchange rates which will

affect the NMK's incone or the value of its holding offinancial instrLrnrents. The objective ofnrarket

risk managcment is to manage and contlol markct risk exposures within acccptable paramctcrs, while

optinrising thc rctum. Ovcrall rcsponsibility for managing market risk tests with the Audit and Risk

Managenient Comrlittee. The NMK's Finance Departrnent is responsible lor the development of

detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Managernent

Committee) and for thc day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to

the Entity's cxposure to markct risks or the u'ay it managcs and mcasures the risk.

iv) Capital Risk Managcment

The objective of thc cntity's capital lisk nranagernent is to sal'eguard the Board's ability to continuc

as a going concern. l hc entity capital structure cotrrpriscs of thc lollolving ftrnds:

Rcvaluation Rescrve
Retained eamin
Ca ital Rcserve

3

156 lil 631

256,876,481blcs
bles

Pa

Pa 156,I I 1,637

6 E

256,876,48 1

t 7 4t2,988,124

3

hs.
14,635, I 50 14,63 5, I 50

( 103,399,21 r) (7,592,127)
3,7 44,556,t15 3,659,627,673

3,666,670,696Total funds
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Total borrowings
kss: Cash and bank balances 289,713,971 428.996.406
Net debt (Excess cash and cash equivalents) (289,713,971\ 428.996.406
Gearins (100%) 8.9%

23.

24.

25.

26.

Related Party Disclosures

Nsture of related partv relationships

Entities and other parties related to the Organization include those parties who have ability to

exercise controI or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related

parties include management personnel and Board ofdirectors.

Government of Kenva

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Organization, holding 100% of the

Organisation 's equity interest. The Government ofKenya has provided full guarantees to all long-

term lenders ofthe Entity, both domestic and extemal.

Other related parties include:

i)

ii)

i ii)

iv)

v)

The Parent Ministry.

County Governments

Other SCs and SAGAs

Key management.

Board of directors.

Events after the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

Ultimate and Holding Entity

The Entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under the Ministry

of Tourism, Wildlife and Heritage. Its ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kenya.

Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the nearest Kshs
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27. Appendiccs

Appendix l: Implementation Status of Auditor-Gcneral's Recommendations

The following is the summary of issue s raiscd by thc extemal auditor, and managcmcnt
comments that were provided to the audilor.

Unsupported
and
undisclosed
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
Balance

I

I nq,

epottttlll 4uditl
lsiirCrdfs&i"r,atf,il$:
'fromAUditOr .; ;

Hlnpf;qT.t{
'tprhment$
11,..l1. .,.,i,,.i,, _ii,,

ot
Slatti!' Tirhefiame

The
Management
engaged
Ministry of
Lands on
matters valuing
of land and
building with
ownership
documents.
Title deeds still
pending while
Fixed asset

register is
maintained.

Partially Resolved 30t06t2024

The statement of
financial position
reflects property,
plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.
3,800,925,071 which,
as disclosed in Note
l4 to the financial
statements, includes
an amount of
Kshs. 1,575,1 27,445
ln respect of land
which has however,
not been valued since
1990. As previously
reported, the Nalional
Museums of Kenya
has one hundred and
fifty (150) parcels of
land spread across the
Country, out of
which only forty-
three (43) parcels had
title deeds and the
remaining 107
parcels had no
ownership
docurnents. Further,
the property, plant
and equipment net
book value of
Kshs.3,800,925,07 I

includes heritage
assets whose value
could not be verified
due to lack of a fixcd
assets register.
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2. Unsupported
Employee
Costs
Balance

The statement of
financial
performance reflects
employee cosl of
Kshs. 't ,325,41I,277
which as disclosed in
Note 6 to the
financial statements,
includes salaries
totalling Kshs.
1,050,678,625.
However, supporting
documents by way of
payroll summaries
and corresponding
payment vouchers
were not provided for
audit.
ln the circumstances,
the accuracy and
validity of the
employee costs of
Kshs. 1,325,411,277
could not be
confirmed.

The supporting
documents and
conesponding
payment
vouchers are

with the Ethics
and Anti-
Corruption
(EACC)and
will be
provided once
retumed to the
organization.

Not Resolved 30/06t2024

3.Unsupported
Bank Overdraft
Balance

The statement of
financial position and
as disclosed in Note
l6 to the financial
statements, rellects a

bank overdraft
balance of Kshs.
I14,846,330 which
was however, not
supported by way of
Board minutes
approving the
overdraft, bank
confirmation
certificates, bank
reconciliation
statements and cash
book extracts.
In the circumstances,
the completeness,
accuracy, validity
and the fair statement

The overdraft
was as a result
ofprevious
unreconciled
amount due to
system crash
which is still
undergoing
reconciliation.

Not yet Resolved 30t06/2023
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of the bank overdraft
balance of Kshs.
I14,846,330 could
not be confirmed.
The Audit was
conducted in
accordance with
Intemational
Standards of
Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAIs).
I am independent of
the National
Museums of Kenya
in accordance with
ISSAI 130 on Code
of Ethics. I have
fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in
accordance with the
ISSAI and in
accordance with
other ethical
requirements
applicable to
performing audits of
financial statements
in Kenya. I believe
that the audit
evidence I have
obtained is suffrcient
and appropriate to
provide a basis for
my qualified option.

Mru-
Director General

Date: { lqlzeu+
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Appendit II: Projects implemented by National Museums of Kenya

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development parhers and/ or the Govemment.

Status of Projects completion

I
NMK Renovation of Vasco
Da Gama Pillar Phase I

64,133,600.00 61,4s6y'33.9s 95.8 64,133,600.00 61,456.433.9s Sports Fund

2
Backfilling of Fort Jesus
Sea wall

246,000,000.00 196,980,751.07 80.1 246,000,000.00 196,980,7s 1 .07 Sports Fund

1

Rehabilitation of Gede
Complex Building in Kilifi
County

33,309,622.72 33,309,622.72 Sports Fund

4

Rehabilitation of Vasco Da
Cama Pillar Phase II in
Kilifi CounW

20,885,325.00 5,585,434.80 26.7 20,885,325.00 5,585,434.80
Sports Fund

5

Renovation and
rehabilitation of Makau in
Taita Taveta County.

68,49',1,974.00 s3,520,640.40 78.1 68,49',1,9',14.00 53,520,640.40 Tourism Promotion Fund

6

Digitization of the
collections, sites and
monuments-

56,291,440.00 45,213,909.50 80.3 s6,29r,440.00 45,2t3,909.50 Tourism Promotion Fund
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ENTITY NAME: NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA

Break down of Transfen from the State Department of Culture and Heritage
F{ 22/23
Recrrrrent Grantg

Bank Statement Date I Amount (Kshs) lndicate the FY to Which the Amounts Relate

96.667.50001.08.2022 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage

96.667,50007.09.2022 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage

18.11.2022 96,667.500
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritaqe

2022/2023

2022/2023

06.12.2022 96,667,500

96.667,50029.12.2022

Herita e

Herita

Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife and

Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and

83.927,50008.o2.2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
HeritaRe

24.03.2023 84.927,500

82,927.500
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife
Heritage 13.O4.2023

and

Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritase 10.05.2023

2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
HeritaRe 09.06.2023

Appendix l: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita

Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita e

a

28.O9.2022 96,667.500

91.667, soo l

2022/2023

2022/2023

2022/2023

2022/2023

2022/2023

2022/2023
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Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herit 09.o5.2023 90,667,500 2022/2023

Total I,t06 790,000

b Other Recurrent Grants
Natural Product lnd

01.08.2022 13.350.000 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage 07.09.2022 r3.350.000 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife and
Herit e 28.O9.2022 r3.350.000
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita e 18.11.2022 13,350.000
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage 06.12-2022
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita e 29.12.2022
Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife and
Herita e 08.o2.2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita e o1.o3.2023

7,9s0,o00 2022/2023

8.950.000 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
HeritaEe 13.04.2023 6,950.000 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife and
Heritage 17.0s.2023 13.350.000 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage 09.06.2023 r3,350,000 2022/2023
Minirtry of Tourism. Wildlife and
HeritaEe 09.06.2023

Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita e

13,350,000

13,350.000

2022/2023

2022/2023

2022/2023

2022/2023
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Total r44,000,000

lndicate the FY to which the amountr relate

2022/2023

2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herit 2022/2023

Total

lnrtitute of Prlmate Research
Bank Statement Date Amount (Kshs)

Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife and
Heritage 11.O8.2022 5.316,660
Ministry of Tourism. Wildlife and
HeritaRe 07.09.2022 5.316.660 2022/2023
Miniitry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage 22.09.2022

I

5.315.580 i 2022/2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Heritage 18.11.2022 15,950.000

o8.o2.2023 9,570.O00
Minirtry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita e 16.05.2023
Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and
Herita 05.06.2023

s,316,666.70 2022/2023

r0.533.333.30 I 2022/2023
57.420.M

c. Development Grants
Bank Statement Date

Minirtry of Tourism. Wildlife and
31.O5.2023Herita e

Amount (Ishs) lndlcate the FY to which the amounts relate

18.523.600 2022/2023
Total 18,523,600
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NOTES:

The above amountr have been communicated to and reconciled with the Parent Ministry

Financial Controller
National Museums of Kenya

Sign

CPA Geoffrey Namachanja

Date: l9th March, 2024

Head of Accounting Unit
State Department of Culture and Heritage

sisn-------H-
CPA Henry K Mayabi

Date: l9h March,2024

a



NATIONAL MUSEUMS OF KENYA
Annual Reports and Financial Statementj

For the Year Ended June 3o.2023

A dix 2: INTER- ENTITY TRANSFERS

ENTITY NAME: NATIONALM USEUMS OF KENYA

Break down of Transfers from the S

FY 22/23
tate Department for

L Devel ment Grantt I

-L
iaro,'rqJ$h,

lndicate the FY to Which the Amounts Relate

16.733.276.sO 2022/2023

16.471.521.sO 2022/2023

Ministry of Youth Affairs, The Arts and
_Herilege _
Ministry of Youth Affairs. The
Heritage_
Ministry of Youth Affairs, The

Bank Statement Date

14.09.2022
I

I

I

---- i-.
Arts and

_-_t_
Arts and l

I

17 .11.2022
j

Herita e 08.12.2022 5.s85,434.8O
se.zg-gelz.egl

Head of Accountin! Unit
State Department of Sports

5ign -

CPA Antony N. Njenga

Date:19th March,2024

2022/2023
Total

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Financial Controller
National Museums of Kenya

I

Sign

CPA Geoffrey Na a a

Date: l9th March,2024


